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(SHANGHAI PUDONG
DEVEL BANK-A)
-A
7| (CITIC SECURITIES 34,929,946 16.23 566,913,023.58 | 3.32
C0-A)
-A
(BANK OF
8 89,958,770 6.02 541,551,795.40 |  3.17
COMMUNICATIONS
C0-A)
-A
9 | (AGRICULTURAL 158,578,640 3.38 535,995,803.20 |  3.13
BANK OF CHINA-A)
-A
10| (uipEA GROUP CO 15,813,202 33.66 532,272,379.32| 3.1
LTD-A)
-A
11| (CHINA STATE 53,929,285 9.36 504,778,107.60 |  2.95
CONSTRUCT ION-A)
-A
12| (IND & COMM BK OF 96,928,973 4.88 473,013,388.24 | 2.77
CHINA-A)
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-A
13| (BANK OF BELJING 49,352,632 8.99 443,680,161.68 [ 2.59
CO LTD-A)
-A
(HAITONG
14 26,953,764 14.85 400,263,395.40 [ 2.34
SECURITIES CO
LTD-A)
-A
15 37,171,050 10.1 375,427,605.00 [ 2.20
(CSR CORP LTD-A)
-A
16| (WULIANGYE YIBIN 7,845,183 45.5 356,955,826.50 |  2.09
€O LTD-A)
-A
17| (BANK OF CHINA 94,717,829 3.59 340,037,006.11|  1.99
LTD-A)
-A
18| (cHINA PACIFIC 11,322,290 27.75 314,193,547.50 |  1.84
INSURANCE GR-A)
-A
19| (SAIC MOTOR CORP 11,026,968 27.25 300,484,878.00 | 1.76
LTD-A)
-A
20| (PING AN BANK CO 32,412,550 8.99 291,388,824.50 | 1.70
LTD-A)
-A
(CHINA
21 39,609,192 7.04 278,848,711.68 |  1.63
SHIPBUILDING
INDUSTR-A)
-A
22| (GUOTAI JUNAN 15,079,234 18.2 274,442,058.80 |  1.60
SECURITIES CO-A)
-A
23| (CHINA UNITED 35,343,956 7.47 264,019,351.32 | 1.54
NETWORK-A)
-A
24| (HANGZHOU 7,134,212 36.57 260,898,132.84 | 1.53
HIKVISION
DIGITAL-A)
-A
25| (POLY REAL ESTATE 26,640,295 9.42 250,951,578.90 |  1.47
GROUP CO-A)
-A
26| (CHINA PETROLEUM 42,944,621 5.78 248,219,909.38 | 1.45
& CHEMICAL-A)
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27

-A
(CHINA YANGTZE
POWER CO LTD-A)

17,793,774

13.89

247,155,520.86

1.45

28

-A
(CHINA
CONSTRUCTION
BANK-A)

40,682,633

5.98

243,282,145.34

1.42

29

-A
(CHINA EVERBRIGHT
BANK CO-A)

62,624,690

3.86

241,731,303.40

1.41

30

-A
(CHINA RAILWAY
CONSTRUCTION-A)

17,061,220

13.04

192,645,666 .84

1.30
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(2017 28 )

)

63.05

10.53

99.87
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2016 2017
( ) ) ( ) )
(012 12 31 ) 16,772,831,681.40 270,545,775,021 8.2890 134
(013 12 31 ) 20,863,824,165.00 336,533,483,781 7.1451 115
(014 12 31 ) 30,196,914,185.00 487,076,225,804 11.3972 184
(015 12 31 ) 18,331,141,985.70 295,681,320,229 10.6887 172
(2016 12 30 ) 17,192,698,141.40 277,318,221,021 10.2854 166
2016 19,246,429,585.81 310,444,909,219 9.3794 151
2016 21,802,506,936.17 351,674,436,880 9.2955 150
2016 21,113,244,314.51 340,556,630,793 9.6562 156
2016 21,789,730,919.23 351,468,359,727 10.0460 162
2016 19,458,848,413.84 313,871,224,915 9.8277 159
2016 10 19,220,358,450.29 310,024,381,803 10.0762 163
2016 11 19,044,568,793.24 307,188,894,635 10.7657 174
2016 12 17,192,698,141.40 277,318,221,021 9.9065 160
2017 16,862,955,218.84 271,999,467,680 10.2854 166
2017 18,465,747,887.93 297,852,513,432 10.3508 167
2017 17,668,988,673.08 285,000,787,297 10.3086 166
2017 17,099,873,927.41 275,820,966,449 10.2825 166
2017 16 17,125,566,391.41 276,235,385,893 10.4584 169
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( )
( ) )
(2012 12 31 ) 8.60 139
(2013 12 31 ) 7.14 115
(2014 12 31 ) 11.08 179
(2015 12 31 ) 10.58 71
(2016 12 30 ) 9-85 159
2016 9.48 153
2016 9.30 150
2016 9.60 155
2016 10.04 162
2016 9.72 157
2016 10 10.02 162
2016 11 10.74 173
2016 12 9.85 159
2017 10.32 166
2017 10.32 166
2017 10.32 166
2017 10.24 165
2017 16 10.46 169
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2012 23
2012 12 31 )

2013 336,840,000.00 5,433,229, 200
2013 12 31 )

2014 1,416,240,000.00 22,843,951,200
2014 12 31 )

2015 413,750,000 6,673,787,500
2015 12 31 )

2016 473,310,000 7,634,490, 300
2016 12 31 )
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C)HC)

2012 23 2012 12 31 ) 13.39
2013 2013 12 31 ) -12.34
2014 2014 12 31 ) 63.41
2015 2015 12 31 ) ~4.03
2016 2016 12 31 ) -1.25
() () 100x@a b) b

a ETF )

)
) ) )

2012 23 2,023,500,000 0 2,023,500,000
2012 12 31
2013 1,070,000,000 173,500,000 2,920,000,000
2013 12 31
2014 2,877,500,000 3,148,000,000 2,649,500,000
2014 12 31
2015 2,564,500,000 3,499,000,000 1,715,000,000
2015 12 31
2016 1,121,000,000 1,100,500,000 1,735,500,000
2016 12 31

()
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( )
(
( )
(SEHK)
SEHK
SEHK
SEHK SEHK ( )
( )
CCASS
( )
(i) (i)
(iii)
@ (i) (ii)
(iii)
(b)
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@

(b)

(€Y (i) (i)
(iii)

(b)
(©

(d)

(€) (

(f)
(9)
(h)

104/323



(@

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

(f)

ETF

105/323

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



@

(b)

@

(b)

(i)

FEEME

Fmil s OEE

i

$. Tru R

(i)

106/323

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Cidi CRRHEEED. (il 5w
Atk E LU0 L IR 2
o AR, ELGiiHE
(AEMIS LR EMESIDE

&R EEEEFII DL TIRRER &
CLETIMA)



@

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€

(f)

@

(i)
(iii)

) 10

107/323

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(i)



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)

(@

(b)

(©

(8 SEHK
(b) ( )

(©) ( )

(d) ( )

(€) ()

@

(b)

(i) (i)

SEHK( )

SEHK
SEHK
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SEHELC B 2255 %
THRS [ (HRF [ (L)

&

E‘I‘f\¥ SEHK J'L.tlj q:""

[
 ad

COMBZRIL THFEZEN D
g (B A T
(s AERTEL. a7
N B i - Digg AR E

FiagEE )
SEHK
SEHK
( )
SEHK
SEHK ETF ETF
ETF SEHK
ETF
( JOR ) ( )
JR 2013 27
ROQFII () - (RQFIN) )
SEHK ETF
SEHK ETF SEHK
ETF
SEHK ETF
SEHK SEHK ETF
ETF ( )
200
SEHK ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
SEHK ETF SEHK( )
( )
SEHK ETF

ETF ETF SEHK
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ETF
ISIN
ISIN
(
ISIN)
82822 CSOP A50 ETF-R HK0000112307
02822 CSOP A50 ETF HK0000127412
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
CCASS
ETF
( )
ETF SEHK ETF SEHK
HKEXx
FAQ(www.hkex.com.hk/eng/prod/secprod/etf/dc.htm)
( )
() -
ETF
ETF
ETF CCASS
(Renminbi Equity Trading Support Facility)( TSF )
ETF TSF CCASS TSF
TSF ETF
ETF ETF
ETF

SEHK ETF

KHSCC CCASS ETF
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) ETF
ETF
ETF CCASS
500,000 ETF
ETF
ETF ETF (
ETF
ETF
( )
)
ETF
12 30
ETF
( 0.00005 )
ETF
( 0.00005 )
ETF
ETF
( ()M )
ETF
ETF
ETF
A
ETF RQFII RQFII

ETF
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( CNY
) ( CNH )
CNY CNH
( ) CNH
CNH CNY
ETF
ETF
( ) CNH (
) ETF
( )
CNH
CNH
SEHK ETF
ETF
ETF
SEHK
CCASS ETF CCASS
CCASS
ETF
ETF
ETF CNH
( )
SEHK ETF HKEx
ETF 11
HKEx
(
80,000 ) ( ) ETF
80,000

() -

(TSF)
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TSF 2011 10 24 HKEX TSF (
)
TSF 2012
TSE
ETF SEHK TSF
HKEx (http://www.hkex.com.hk/eng/market/sec_tradinfra/tsf/tsf.htm) TSF
ETF

@

ETF

@ ( )

()

()

() ( )

(b) (

(b)
()
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(f)

(9)

(h)
(i)

@
@
(b)
(©
(d)
(i) (i)
SEHK( )
SEHK SEHK
SEHK SEHK
SEHK
HKSCC
CCASS
80

12 31
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()

80

@ (

90
(b)

(©)

(d) 60 30 (

G 60 30

@

(b)

(©
SEHK

(d) ( (

(€)

()
104

(i)

(i)
( ) (iii)

()
(A) RQFII
RQFII

@ RQFII RQFII
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ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF 10 (
( )
(
HKEx (www.hkex.com.hk)
( )
(
)
SEHK
( )
HKEx (www.hkex.com.hk,)
)
FATCA
(i)
(A)
(FATCA

(B)

(i)
(iii)
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ETF
(& RQFII
(b) RQFII
( )
ETF
ETF
SEHK ETF
ETF ( ) ETF
ETF
SEHK
ETF CNH
ETF SEHK
CNH
ETF
SEHK 15 A
ETF ETF
ETF
ETF
( ) CNH
A ETF
ETF
(www.csopasset.com/etf)
a) ETF (
)
b) ()
(i) ETF
(iii) ETF
)
C) ( ETF )
d) ETF ( 12 )
€) ( )
f) ETF

ETF
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(1) ETF
) ETF
) ETF

(PricewaterhouseCoopers)
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134

(CNH)=16.13 )
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CNH /

CSOPFTSE
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( 3 4)

) 131

2017 28
( =14.30 )

@

AS0ETF ETF
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CSOP FTSE AS50 ETF
CSOP ETF
2016 12 31
M1EF asF aeF 5
B AT A BT Fog o2t Fog- i)
=
EEE
HHE i H i TR HE R & 1,383 200 4519 200 2231101 12,294 ala
AR E
g Tie) &) 17,177,372,283 12,232 458 944 277071024603  294.089,562,767
FUTFI B 1,668 13,191 26,905 21271
FEE S 7fc) 40277923 211,123,590 §49 632 298 3405423507
17217652474 12443595725 277720734406 297495199 044
HEast 17219035674 12448114925 277743045422 297562093740
Ak
wEhA S
EiFE 4 =R E - 50270,5324 - 210,260 324
b -t —mELE - 45247 158 - TARE360 659
Ffl B IR EmA Fra) 15,024,826 155335223 243318243 247357 147
FEL - FELEMAN Ly 1.334177 13547168 2 52025 21851 5409
FE AL AE 10065032 5007631 162,348 086 20773 088
e aRti ot 456,872 254 Tl 1.a69.345 4108 511
________ 26940807 117469514 434,556,830 1,894,788,100
AfEast 26,940,907 117469 214 434,556,330 1,294,728, 100
A
TEEICRERTIHEEE 4 17192094787 18330845111 HI0E08 488,502 205673305 040
9 33 CSOP FTSE A50 ETF
2017 4 28
CSOP HSBC
13 33 CSOP FTSE  A50 ETF
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CSOP FTSE A50 ETF
CSOPETF
2016 12 31
mlsE 1R H31H M5 12H31H ml6F12H31H 0154F 128315
BTSETERE PTSETERE PTEERE BT SHERE
T AET AT oF oo ok oo
[ 1§
BC Iz 2, BTN TH Sl 10EA 553470 820,449 540
¥ a2, T 439200 1266213 gl 43385
e CHRE) S 5 (855, 546, 420 1,182 787,352 (10555577 15868570 1459
F Mt MRS 1743 855 1536361 25 2RI R1E 2199 B AT
#HE/ (BX) &t HLSI0. L LESZLTS FLIELTH 240091524
2 H
& ISR Fia) (187,773,059 (219, 181,755 (3028, 750,087 (3535444.358)
=L 7ih) (16,535,530 (1907273 (2, B0, 54) (FE22TM
BEICEINGIER (47,562,515 134, 580,528 (PR O 250 (2009453880
B 36 (e, 1) (57L0%) ( 11,108, 75 (2211748
HEgEELFEaERA (1.%2.291) (1,255,528 [ 25,312 660 (20245441
#ELE LT DD
B PR CHINL ({145,000 {11,900 20 (2338999
SHAEAE Fid) (19,481, 15) {20 5, B (314,270, 045 (T 74720
T mithE EERR [EL7. 262 (7.5 (955547 (12253510)
EXaESSH O v o | (328,554, 7Lz {44490, 057 5H) (B267.357.509)
BE JEE) HE (293, 114, 19 1474 &E7 013 (SERIE0E ped LR
B & (65, 2,556 1068713 (L 130,95%. 529) 17738371
S EHESsH (05,557, 194 1,475, 796, 26 (LSR5 5 25153401190
13 33 CSOP FTSE  A50 ETF

126/323



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

CSOPETF

2016 12 31

0lEE2FE18 15E12A 218 0168E12A31E 015E12A 1A
T SRn F TSR T SR BT s

bt - A BT g g

A (R T DL R e B R 18230645111 30,196 14 185 E5 673 305 540 457 DT6.205 504
SEEE RITN 10:273 016 430 28,805,943 330 165 754 405 339 464 fi25 264 301

IR OE R TR DR L (10 £34 3096000 (41,897,253 6507 (171532 265 542 (672 576,792, 155)
AT L SR (Z56.33 150 (12588 515 g0y (5745 460 210 207 BRE 338540
SEE s Dol g (473310 000 (413,730 000} (7 i34 450 2000 (i 73787 50070
LB AR St E08857 1941 L435,796 740 (4 P51 H06 539 &5 159,401 190
FEECEE T S3WES ofmn s 17 192,094 767 1333065111 I7T 30 488 502 205 73 305 pA0

13 33 COP FTSE A50 ETF
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13 33

CSOP FTSE AB0 ETF
CSOPETF
2016 12 31
w1sF 2R 31H anFF A 1E m1FF12R 218 w17F 12A 3185
ETEEE BT EITEE BTEHEE BTEITEE
A BT A EI gEH BEE

EEXEZBI LS5 r>2a70-
BiMiEl& O OEEE
HilE & DEH =
o

2lFHE

ToiERE

EIEHA DL E
a2 ADELE
FLHELE
TohEXRRAOCELE
oh [E 5 B TR EE HE W

EEXEFBICLS
FrkF-FF ¥ 2270

HEEHI - L5t r>>a70—-
RME A REITINE

THI A DEEICEDSERL
SECE MFELLEE

HEZBTHERXIOhE

FrkF-F¥>a70-

W& L PR & E O

FESMOAEELFRER TN

FEFOHREELUFREESHN

HE B LIUFREHETBESOAX
HEES

COP FTSE

A50 ETF

(16,506,442.748)

(35542,921,175)

(271.0288,018,305)

(573,308,286 353)

17,1a0,5641,229 48.721,085,472 278,501,143,024 755,870,788 065
673,935,739 515,538,928 10,570,553,470 8,320,445 549
450,723 1,270,412 7,270,162 20,491 542
17,426,833 136,351,232 2E1.094 516 2.199.506572
[188,0253,438) (230,035,834) (3,032,812 5930 (5,710,472 002)
(47.262,545) [124,580,526) (772022251 (2,009 453 254
(6%,742,3598) [54,477.210) (1,124,954 525) (872,727075)
(34,394,932) (40,537,538) [554,7390253) [B53,870.458)
3,138,000 5,224 800 S0,583 480 24276024
709,117,807 15587,145,.59:87 11,438,070227 215,954,664 448
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CSOP FTSE CHINA ASD ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2016
2016 2015
Notes FME RME
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Deposit reserve 1,383,200 4519200
CURRENT ASSETS
Investments T{eh 8fal 17,177.372,883 18,232 458 944
Interest receivable 1,663 13,191
Bank balances Fiel 40,277,923 211,123,590
17.217.652.474 18,443,595,725
Tatal assels 17,219,035,674 18.448,114,925
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amonnts due to participating dealers - 50,270,324
Amounis due io brokers - 45,247,158
Management fee payable Tie) 15,084,826 15335223
Trustee fee payable 7kl 1,334,177 1,354,716
License fee payable 10,065,032 5,007,631
Cther sccounts pavable 456,872 254,762
26,940,907 117 469,814
Total liabilities 26,940,907 117,469 814
EQUITY
Nel assels attributable to unitholders 2 T.192,094,. 767 18,330,645,111

The financial statements on pages 9 to 31 were approved by the Trugtee and the Manager on 28 April 2017 and were
signed on their behalf.

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of

CHOP Assel Management Limited HEBC Inditutional Trst Services (Asiah Limited
a5 the Manager as the Trustee

The notes on pages 13 to 31 form part of these financial statements

153/323



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP FITSE CHINA ASD ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
Noies RME RME
INCOME
Dividend income 673035719 515836928
Interest imcome el 439,200 1,266,203
Met (lossVeain on investments 5 (6550646,422) 1.169.787.362
Oither income 17426833 136,361,232
Total net incomse 36,155,350 1.823,251,725
EXFENSES
Management fee Fla) (187.773.099) (219,184,399)
Trustee fee il (16,533,580) (19,071,871}
Transaction costs of investments (47 862,515 (124,580,526)
Audit foe (658,704 (571,094
Safe custody and bank charges (1,569,291) [1.255,328)
Legal and other professional fee {743,911 (145,009)
License fee Fid) (19481,158) (22984 953)
Other operating expenses (617.262) (761,532)
Total operating expenses (275,269,548) (388,554.712)
Operating (loss)/ profit (239,114,198) 1,434,697,013
Taxation 6 (69.742,996) 1,099,713

Total comprehensive income

(308.857.194)

1435796726

Thhe notes on pages 13 to 31 form part of these financial starements

1o
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Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Noie RME RME

Met assets attributable to unitholders at the begmning

of the year 18330645111 30196914, 185

Proceeds on issue of units 10,278,016,450 23,808,943 350
Payments on redemption of units (10,634,399 600 (41,697,250 650
Met decrease from unit transactions (356,383,150} {12,388.315,800)
Distribastion o unitholders U] (473,310,000 (413,750,000 )

Total comprehensive income for the year {308,857,194)

1.435.796,726

MNet assels attributable to unitholders at the end of

the year 17, 192,084,767 18.330.645,111

The notes on pages 12 to 31 form pari aj!ﬁm&zﬁnmrjﬂf shalemenis
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CSOP FITSE CHINA ASD ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Wear ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
RME RAME
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Paymenis for purchase of investments (16,806,448, 748) (35.542,981,175)
Proceeds from sale of investments 17.160,641,229 48721065472
Dividend received 673,535,735 515,836,928
Interest received 430,713 1270418
Other income received 17426833 136,361,232
Management fee paid (158,023,496) (230,035,834
Transaction costs paid (47.862,545) (124,580,526)
Taxation paid (69,742,996 (34477 810)
Other operating expenses pad (34,394 932) (40.537,538)
Deposit reserve received 3.136,000 3,224 800
Net cash generated from operating activities 709,117 807 13,387.145.967
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on issue of unils 10,275,016,450 28808943 850

Payments on redemption of units

(10,684,669.924)

(42,672,166,428)

Distribution paid (473,310,000 ) (413, 750,000)
Net cash used in financng activitles (379,263 474) (14,276,972,578)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (170,845,667) (889.826.611)
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year 211,123,590 1.100.950,201
Cash and cash equivalenis af the end of the year 40,277,923 211,123,590
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances 40,277,923 211,123,590

The notes on pages 13 ie 31 form part of these financial staie menis,
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CHOP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GENERAL INFORMATION

CEOP ETF Senes (the “Trost™) 15 an umbrella it trod governed by its a trost deed dated 25 July 2012, as
amended, (the *Trest Deed™) and authorised by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the
“SFC™) pursuant to Section 104(1) of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The terms of the Trust Deed are
govemed by the laws of Hong Kong, As al 31 December 2016, the Trust has seven sub-funds whach are CSOP
FTSE China A50 ETF (the *Sub-Fund"), CSOP CES China AS0 ETF, CSOP MSCI T30 ETF, CS0OP SZS8E
ChiNext ETF, CSOP China CSI 300 Sman ETF, CSOP MSCI China A Intemmational ETF and CSOP S&P
Mew China Sectorz ETF. The date of inception of the Sub-Fund was 23 August 2012, The Sub-Fund is hsted
an The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limated. CSOP Asset Management Limited, the manager of the Sub-
Fund, applied and obtained approval to list Japan Depository Receipt (“JDR"} which represents units of the
Sub-Fund on the Tekyo Stock Exchange (" TSE™). The JDR which represents units of the Sub-Fund was listed
on the TSE on 27 February 2013,

The manager and the trustee of the Sub-Fund are CS5OP Asset Management Limited (the “Manager™) and
HSBC Instiutional Trust Services { Asia) Limited (the “Trustee™y respectively.

The imvestment objective of the Sub-Fund is to provide investment resulbis that, before deduction of fees and
expenses, closely correspond to the performance of the underlying index, namely, FTSE China AS0 Index (the
“underlying Index”). In order to achieve the investment objective of the Sub-Fund, the Manager will adopt a
full replication drategy by directly investing all, or substantially all, of the assets of the Sub-Fund in index
securities consituting the underlying index in substantially the same weightings (i.e. proportions) as thess
index securities have in the underlying index. The Manager may also use a representative sampling strategy in
exceptional circumstances,

Priorte 27 February 2015, the Sub-Fund has been usmg FTSE China AS0 price réetum mdex as its underlying
index. With effect from 27 February 2015, the type of the underlying index of the Sub-Fund changed from
price retum index to net total retum index. The Manager believes that the change to the type of the underlying
index will not only reduce the cash dragging but also its tracking error of the Sub-Fund.

Under current regulations in the People’ s Republic of China ("PRC™) generally foreign investors can invest in
the domestic securities market through centain qualified foreign ingitutional investors that have obtmned
status as a Qualified Foreign Institetional Investor (“QFIT) or a Renminbi Qualified Foreign Institutional
Investor (“ROFIM) from the China Secunties Regulatory Commussion ("CSRC™) and have been granted
quotalsh by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange (“SAFE") of the PRC to remit foreign freely
convertible cwrencies (in the case of a QFID) and Chinese Renmintn ("RMB™) (in the ¢ase of a RQFI) into
the PRC for the purpese of investing in the PRC's domestic securities markeis. Foreign investors can also
invest in the domestic securities market through Shanghai - Hong Kong Stock Connect Program (* Stock
Connect™).

The Sub-Fund obtains exposure to securities issued within the PRC through the ROFII quotas of the Manager
and the Stock Connect, The Manager has obtained ROFII status in the PRC and the ROFII quotas have been
granted, on behalf of the Sub-Fund. To the extent that the Manager has, on behalf of the Sub-Fund, utilised its
entine ROFI quota, the Manager may. subject to any applicable requirements, apply for an increase of the
ROQFII quota. On the other hand, the Manager actively manages the RQFII quota obtained and may impose
limits on creation applications as it considers appropriate.

These financial statements ase prepared for the Sub-Fund only. The financial statements for CSOP CES China
ARDETF, CSOP MSCI T30 ETF, CS0P SZ5E ChiNext ETF, CSOP China C51300 Smart ETF, CS0P MSCI
China A International ETF and CSOP S&P New China Sectors ETF have been prepared separately.
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The prmcipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set oul below,
These policies have been consistently applied (o all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated,

(a) Basls of preparation

The financial statements of the Sub-Fund have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (" HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). The financial statements have been prepared under the higtorical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the Tmstee and Manager (together the “Management™) to
exgrcise their judgment in the process of applying the Sub-Fund's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial stalements ane disclosed in Mote 3.

There are no sandards, interpretations or amendments (o existing standards that are effective for the
first tume for the financial year begmning 1 January 2016 that would be expected to have a significant
impact on the Sub-Fund.

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods begimming after 1 Janwary 2016, and have not been applhied in preparing these financial
staterments. Wone of these are expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the
Sub-Fund except the following set out below:

HEFRS 9. ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
linancial assets and financial babilities. The complete version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014, It
replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial
ingmments, HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair valne throungh other
comprehensive income (“CCT") and fair value through profit or loss. The basiz of classification
depends on the entity's business model and the contractual cash flow characterigtics of the financial
assel. Investments in equity mstruments are required to be measured af fair value throngh profit or loss
with the imevecable option at mception (o present changes in fair value in OCT not recyeling. There is
now a new expecied credit losses model that replaces the incumed loss impairment model used in
HE.AS 30, For financial liabilities there were no changes to classification and measurement excepl for
the recognition of changes in own credit sk in other comprehensive income, for labilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectivensss by
replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. I requires an economic relationship between the
hedged item and hedging instrament and for the ‘hedged ratio’ 1o be the same 28 the one management
actually nse for nsk management purposes,

Contemporanecus documentation i =il required but is different to that cumently prepared under
HEAS 39, The standard is effective for accounting periods bezmning on or after 1 January 2013,
Esarly adoption is permitted. The Sub-Fund is vet 10 assess HEKFRS 95 full impact,
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Wew gandard and amendments to standards effective afier 1 January 2016 that are relevant to the Sub-
1 L 1%/ 3 A thi 51 | i1

HKFRS 15, "Revenue from contracts with customers” deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the natire, ameount,
timing and uncentanty of revenne and cash Qows arising from an entily’s contracts with customers.,
Revenue is recognised when a cugtomer obtaing control of a good or service and thus has the ability 1o
direct the use and obtain the bemefits from the good or service. The gtandard replaces HEAS 18
‘Revenue’ and HKAS 11 *Construction contracts’ and related interpretations. The standard is effective
for annual periods beginming on or after 1 Janoary 2008 and earfier application is permitied. The
Manager of the Sub-Fund is assessing the impact of HKFRS 15,

The HEKICPA has issued an amendment to HEKAS 7, “Statement of cash flows” introducing an
additional disclosure that will enable nsers of financial gatements to evaluate changes in liabilities
ansing from financing activities. The amendment 15 part of the HEICPA' s disclosure mitiative, which
continnes to explore how financial statement disclosures can be improved. An entity shall apply those
amendments to HEAS 7 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 JTannary 2017, The Manager of the
Sub-Fund 1= assessing the impact of HEAS7,

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a significant impact on the Sub-Fund.

(b} Investments
(1) Classification

The Sub-Fund classifies its mvestments as fnancial assets ab fair valoe throngh profit or loss,
These financial assets are designated by the Management at fair value through profit or loss at
inception. Financial assets designated at fair value throngh profit or loss at inception are those
that are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the
Sub-Fund’s documented imvestment strategies. The Sub-Fund's policies require the
Management 1o evaluate the information about these financial assets on a fair valie basis
together with other related financial information.

(11} Recognition/derecognation
Purchases and sales of investmenis are accounted for on the trade date basis. Investmenls are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the mvestments have expired or the
Sub-Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

{11} M easurement

Investments are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all investments are measured at fair value, Realised and

unrealised gains and losses on investments are recogmised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the year in which they arise,
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b} Investments (Continued)

(iv}  Fair value estimation

Fair vatue is the price that would be received to zell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of
financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and
trading securities) are based on quoted market prices @t the close of trading on the reporting
date. The Sub-Fund wtilises the last traded market price for both listed financial assets and
liabilities where the last traded price Falls within the bid-ask spread, In circumstances where
the last traded price 35 not within the bid-ask spread, management will determine the point
within the bid-ask spread that is moest representative of fair value.

The fair value of financial assets that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using broker quotes or valuation techniques.

() Transfers between levels of the fir value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair valie hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the
beginning of the reponting period.

(<) Amounts due from/to participating dealers
Amounts due from/to paticipating  dealers represent the subscription recervable and redemption
pavable to the participating dealer st the end of the reporting year. The amounts are non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

{d) Dividend income and interest income

Dividend income 15 recorded on the ex-dividend date with the comesponding foreign withholding taxes
recorded as an expense,

Interest income is recognized on atime-proportionate basis using the effective interest method.
(3] Distributions to unithol ders

Digtrbutions o wnitholders are recognised in the statement of changes in net assets aributable o
unitholders when they are approved by the Manager,

(f) Other income'expense

Other income/expense mainly represents the difference between the proceeds received from/paid to
participating dealers and cost of investment purchased/sold.

(2 Transactions costs
Transactions costs are costs incumed to acquire’dispose financial assets or liabilities & fair value
through profit or foss, They melude fees and commissions paid 1o agents, brokers and dealers,
Transactions costs, when incwred, are immediately recognised in profit or loss as an expense.

(h) Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accrial basis.
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash i hand, demand deposits, ofher shori-term highly liquid
mvestments with onginal matuniies of three months or less and bank overdrafis,

i} Foreign currendes translation
inchivnal s enilal ion Ci

liems included in the financial satements are measured using the curmency of the primary econcomic
environument in which the Sub-Fund operates (the “functional curency™), The Sub-Fund invests in A-
Shares in the PRC and the performance of the Sub-Fund is measured and reported to the unitholders in
EMEBE. The Manager considers Renminbi as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic
effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The financial statements are presented in
RME, which is the Sub-Fund's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign curmency assets and labilities are translated into the
funetional currency using the exchange rate prevailing af the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are included in the statement of
comprehensive income,

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within “net gain{loss)
on investments”,

(K} Redeemable units

The Sub-Fund issues redeemable units, whach are redeemable at the holder’s option represents
puttable financial instruments of the SubJdFund. The SubJFund classifies iis puttable financial
mdruments a5 equity in accordance with HKAS 32 (Amendment), “Financial nstroments:
Presentation” as those puttable financial instruments meet all the following criteria:

o the puttable financial instruments entitle the holder 1o a pro-rata share of net asset value,

« the puttable financial instniments are the most subordinated units in issue and unit features are
identical

+ there are no contractual obligations 1o deliver cash or another financial asset; and

« the total expected cash flows from the puttable financial instrament over s life are based
substantially on the profit or loss of the Sub-Fund.

Units are issued and redeemed at the holder's option at prices based on the Sub-Fund’s net asset vale
per unit @t the time of issue or redemption. The Sub-Fund's net asset value per unit is caleulated by
dividing the net assets attnbutable to nnitholders with the total number of outstanding unis.

In accordance with the Prospectus of the Sub-Fund, mvestment positions are valued based on the last

traded market price for the purpose of determining the net asset value per unit for crestions and
redemptions of the Sub-Fund.
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
{n Taxation

The Sub-Fund cumently incurs withholding taxes imposed by PRC on investment income. Such
meome 15 recorded gross of withholding taxes o the statement of comprehensive mcome.
Withholding taxes are included as taxation in the statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the hability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the fnancial statements, However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or lability
in a transaction that a0 the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Dreferred mcome tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
meome tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Dreferred mcome tax assets and habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to offset
current lax assels against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation anthority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on anet basis,

{m}) Establishment costs
Establishment costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Manager makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting etimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual resulis, Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, meoluding expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the crcumstances, The edtimates and assumplions that have a significant nsk of causmg a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined
below,

() Feople's Republic of China (*PRC™) tax provision

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager has made cenain assiomptions and used vanous estimates
concerning the tax exposure which is dependent on what might happen in the fisture. The resulting accounting
estimates may nol equal the related actual resulis,

The Sub-Fund invests in A-shares securities which are issued within the PRC through the ROFII quotas of the
Manager and the Stock Connect. Under the general taxing provision of PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10%% withholding tax may be payable on the gains derived from the sale of A-shares by ROFIIs,

Notice issued on 14 November 201 4

On 14 Movernber 2014, the Muustry of Finance of the PRC (the "MoF" ), the State Adminustration of Taxation
of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securities Regulatory Commission (the "CSRC™) jointly issued the "Notice

on temporary exemption of Corporate Income Tax on capital gains dernved from the transfer of equily
investment assets such as PRC domestic stocks by QF1Land ROQFI" (the "Motice™ ),
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
(a) People's Republic of China (*PRC"") tax provision (Continued)

Notice tsswed on 4 November 201 4 (Continued)

According to the Motice, amongst other things:

(i) QFlis and ROFIs, which do not have an establishment or place of business in the PRC or have an
establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in the PRC is not effectively connected
with such establishment, will be temporarily exempt from corporate income tax on gains derived from
the transfer of PRC equity investment aszets (including China A-Shares) effective from 17 November
2014,

{ii} PRC comporate income tax will be imposed on gams by QFIls and ROFIE from transfer of equity
investment assels (including China A-Shares) realised prior (o 17 November 2014 m accordance with
laws.

As a result of the issue of the Notice, the Manager has decided on the following changes to the tax
provisioning pelicy of the Sub-Fund:

(i) The Sub-Fund has ceased to provide PRC withholding income tax for realised gains on invesiments in
China A-Shares on or afier 17 November 2014;

(i} Mo PRC withholding income tax provision 8 made for unrealised gains for China A -shares.
E f ial led 3] D ber 2015

On 1 April 2015, the Third Branch of Shanghai Municipal Office, SAT (the " Anthority™) and the Third Branch
of Shangha Burean of Local Taxation jointly issued the MNotice on Tax lssues to notify that the QFIVROFIL
shall declare and handle with the tax-related issues conceming the gams from transfer of equity investment
assets, including A-Shares, realised prior to 17 November 2014 to the Authority before 30 September 2015 in
accordance with the relevant PRC tax law and the Notice (the * Tax Reporting”). Those QFIFRGQFI s eligible
for treaty relielf under an applicable tax wreaty should follow the requrement of Circular 124 for tax treaty
application (the “Tax Treaty Application™).

The Manager had made, on behalf of the Sub-Fund, the Tax Repotting for the period from 23 Angust 2012
idate of inception) to 14 November 2014 inclusively, and applied the Tax Treaty Application for the Sub-Fund
in September 2015, The Aunthority completed the review on the Sub-Fund's Tax Reporting and Tax Treaty
Application and issued a document on its official web-site indicating that the Authonity agrees with the Sub-
Fund's Tax Treaty Application submitted. The Anthority also issued a PRC tax demand note to the Sub-Fund
to settle the PRC WIT on gross realised capital gains derived by the Sub-Fend from trading of PRC A-Shares
issmed by immovable propemies-rich companies only for the penod from 23 Aungust 2012 (date of inception)
up (o and inclding 14 November 2004, Owt of the PRC tax provision of the Sub-Fund as of 31 December
2014 of RMBSS5577.523, the Sub-Fund settled the relevant PRC WIT lighilities in the amount of
RMB2,767,468 on 30 September 2015 and the Manager reversed the unused WIT provision amounted to
RMBS2310,055 on | December 2015, Refer to Note 6.

For the financial led 311 ber 2016

Mo PRC withholding tax on gains derived from the sale of A-shares is provided by the Sub-Fund for the year
ended 31 December 2016,
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
(b Fair value of securities that are suspended from trading

As gt 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were listed equities which have been suspended for trading mainly
due to business regmicturing. Management made its judgement in determining the fair values of these
investments and involved a higher degree of subjectivity. Management judgement in determining the fair
values of the suspended investments includes factors such as the duration of suspension period, the relevant
market information and news of the suspended listed equities, the price movement of comparable listed
equities’index during the suspension peniod and iF applicable, the market prices of the suspended listed
equities upon resumption of trading after year end.

As ar 31 December 2016 and 2015, these investments held by the Sub-Fund included listed equities of
RME168.4 14,838 (2015: RMBY36,062.422) which have been suspended for trading. Having considered the
factors mentioned above, management has based on their best estimation and concluded using the latest
available price before suspension as the fair value of the investments as ot 31 December 2016 and 2015, Refer
to Mate 3{d).

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE AND NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER
UNIT

The Sub Fund's capital is represented by the units in the Sub-Fund, and shown as “net assets attributable to
unitholders™ n the statement of financial position, Subscriptions and redemptions of unds during the vear ane
ghown in the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders. In order to achieve the investment
objectives, the SubJFund endeavors to invest its capital in accordance with the investment policies, whilst
maintaining sufficient hguidity to meet redemption requests.

In accordance with the provisions of the Trust's Trust Deed dated 25 July 2012, as amended, md the
Prospectus of the Sub-Fund, investments are stated a1 the last traded price on the valuation day for the purpose
of determining net asset value per unit for subscriptions and redemptions and for varions fee calculations.

As stated in Note 2(k) redeemable units of the Sub-Fund are classified as equity and they are camried af the
redemption amount that would be payable at the reporting date if the unitholder exercised the right to redeem
the units in the Sub-Fund.

The movements of the redeemable nmts for the vear ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are a3 follows:

2016 2015

units unils
Number of units in fssne at the beginning of the vear 1, 715,000,000 2,649 500,000
Units issued 1. 121,000,000 2.564,500,000
Umnits redeemed (1 100,500,000) (3.499,000,000)
Mumber of units n issue at the end of the year 1, 735,500,000 1.7 15,000,000

As staled i Mote 2(m), csiablishment costs are expensed as incumed. However, in accordance with the
provisions of the Trud's Prospectus, establishment costs are recognised using the amontisation method. As o
31 December 2016 and 2015, the expensing of establishment costs as sated in the financial statements resuli ed
m @ decrease of net assets attribngable to unitholders of RMBSS.045 (2015: RMB4%6,875) when compared
with the methodology indicated in the Trust s Prospectus,
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(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE AND NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER
UNIT (Continued})

2016 2015
RME RMEB
Met assets atnbmable (o unitholders s reported in the
statement of financial position 17,192,054, 767 18330645111
Addjustments for unamonised establishment costs 83,045 496,875
Net asset vatue in accordance with the Trust's Prospectus 17,192,182,812 18,331,141,956
Met assets atribitable to unitholders per umit 31 December
{per statement of financial position) 98061 10688
Net assets attributable to unitholders per it 31 December
{at dealing net asset value) O G062 106887
NET (LOSSYGAIN ON INVESTMENTS
2016 2015
RME RME
Met fair value change in unrealised gain/loss in valee of
mvestmenis (362,482 753) (10,027 685 463)
Net realized {lossygain on sale of investments (293, 163 669) 11,197 476 825
(655,646 422) 1. 169,787,362

TAXATION

Mo provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the Sub-Fund as # was authorised as a collective
investment scheme under Section 104 of the Hong Kong Securities and Fatures Ordinance and is therefore
exempt from profits tax under Section 26 A1 A) of the Hong Kong Inland Eevenue Ondinance,

PRC tax
The Sub-Fund mvests in A-Shares listed in the PRC and is subjected to 1024 withholding tax on dividend
income derived from A-Shares. Withholding tax was charged on dividend income received from A-Shares

during the vear, Refer to Mote 3 for PRC withholding tax on gains derved from the sale of A-shares by QF1ls
and RQF1s,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation of the Sub-Fund for the vear ended 31 December 20006 and 2015 represents:

2016 2015
RMEB RMB
Reversal on capital gain tax - {52810,055)
= {52810,055)
Withholding tax on dividend income 69,700,954 51,583,722
Withholding tax on interest meome 42,042 126,620
69,742,996 51,710,342
Tax expenses{credit ) 69,742,996 (1.099.713)
The movement in provision for taxation during the year is as follows:
2016 2015
RME RME
At the begmrung of the year - 55,577,523
Taxation charged to the statement of comprehensive
income for the year 69,742,996 51,710,342
Reversal of current tax liahilities = (52.810,055)
Tax paid (69,742,996) (54,477,810

At the end of the year

TRANSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE, MANAGER AND CONNECTED PERSONS

The following is a summary of significant related pany transactionstransactions entered into during the vear
between the Sub-Fund and the Tmstee, the Manager and the Connected Persons of the Manager. Connected
Persons of the Manager are those as defined in the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the
Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Keng (the *SFC Code™). All transactions entered into during the
yvear between the Sub-Fund and the Manager and its Connected Persons were carried oul in the normal course
of business and on nomal commercial terms. To the best of the Manager’s knowledge, the Sub-Fund does not
hawve any other transactions with the Connected Persons of the Manager except for those disclosed below.

(a)

Management fee

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee, currently ai the rate of 0.99% per annum of the
net assel value of the Sub-Fund accrued daily and calculated as at each dealing day and payable

monthly in arears,
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(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TRANSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE, MANAGER AND CONNECTED PERSONS (Continued)
(b} Trustee fee and Registrar's fee

The Trustee is entitled to receive a trustee fee of up to 1%6 per annum of the net asset value of the Sub-
Fund, which accrued daily and caloubsied as at each dealing day and payable monthly m amears. For
the year ended December 2016 and 2015, the tmstee fee is calculated as a percentage per annum of the
net asset vahie of the Sub-Fund a the rate as follows, subject to a monthly minimum of RMB40,000:

Trus es fee percentage

PET ANMNTLTE

For first EMB200 million (r.16%
For next RMB 1,000 million 0149
For next RMB 1,000 million 0.12%
For next EMB 1,000 million 0.10%
Thereafter 0.08%

The Trstee's fee is inclusive of fees pavable to The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited {the “Custodian”} and HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited {the “PRC Custodian™).

The Tresee, acling as the Registrar, is also entitled to a fee of RMBI20 (2015 RMB120) per
participating dealer per transaction.

(c) Finandal assets

The investments and bank balances of the Sub-Fund held with related parties of the Tmstee are:

2016 2015
RMB RME
Investments
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited 17,177,372,883 18,232,458,944
Bank balances
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 27.455,761 110,734,726
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited 12,322,162 100,388 864
40277923 211,123,590

Interest income amounted (o RMB439,200 (2015 RMEBE1.266,203) was eamed on these bank balances
for the vear ended 31 December 20016 and 2015,

(d)y License fee

According to the Trost Deed dated 25 July 2012, as amended, the license fees and expenses payable 1o
the owner of an index for the use of such index shall be pavable out of the Sub-Fund. Pror to 1
January 2015, the FTSE index license fees were paid by the Manager of the Sub-Fund. Pursuant to the
letter dated 16 Movember 2015 between the Trustee and the Manager of the Sub-Fund, the Manager
has decided that the license fee shall be paid out of the Sub-Fund commencing from 1 Jamary 2015
and the Manager was reimbursed by the Sub-Fund for the license fee of RMB 19918378 which was
paid cut by the Manager from | January 2015 to 16 November 2015, For the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2015, the amount of RMB19481,156 represents the license fee (2015: the amount of
RMB22984.953 mepresends the license fee of the Sub-Fund of which RMB19.918378 was the
reimbursement to the Manager for their payment of the license fee for the Sub-Fund for 1 Jamary
2015to 16 November 2015).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Sub-Fund iz to provide investment resulis that, before deduction of fees and expenses,
closely comespond to the performance of the FTSE China AS0 Index. The Sub-Fund's activities may expose it
to a variety of risks including but not limited to: market risk (including market price risk. interest rate nsk and
cumency nsk) credit and counterpanty nsk and liquidity nisk which are associated with the markets in which
the Sub-Fund invests.

The following is a summary of the main risks and sk management policies,
(a)  Market risk
(i) Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the valie of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arisig from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
thosze changes are cansed by factors specific to the individual instroment or factors affecting all
mstriuments in the market,

The Sub-Fund is designated to track the performance of the FTSE China AS50 Index, therefore the
exposunes to market nsk in the Sub-Fund will be substantially the same as the tracked index. The
Manager manages the Sub-Fund® s exposures to market risk by ensuring that the key characieristics
of the portfolio, such as security weight and industry weight, are closely aligned with the
characteristics of the tracked index.

Asat 31 December, the Sub-Fund's investments were concentrated in the following industries:

2016 2015
Fair value % of net Fair value %o 0 met
asset value asset valne
RME RME
Listed equities in PRC — by
indusry

Basic materials 153,662,997 (.89 203,798,572 1.60
Corsumer goods 2045331472 11.90 1,353,533,151 738
Consumer Services - - 252,164,110 1.38
Financials 11.903,756,589 6924 12,585 400,577 68.64
Health Care 38,029 586 0.51 86,329057 047
Industrials 2175816158 12.65 2.630.961.791 14.36
il & gas 402,492,070 2.3 404,247.010 221
Technology 35907130 0.21 - -
Telecommunications - - 260,333 401 142
Utilities 372,376,881 217 365,191,275 2.00
17,177.372,883 e | 18,232 458,944 9946

The Sub-Fund held 50 ot of 500 (2015: 50 out of 50} constituent secunties comprising the FTSE
China A50 Index. The Sub-Fund is therefore exposed to substantially the same market price risk as
the FTSE China AS0 Index.
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued)

{1y Market price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analvsiz in the event of a possible change in the index by 10% az estimated by the

Manager

Asat 31 December 2016 and 2015, if the FTSE China AS0 Index were o increase by 10% (2015
104} with all cther variables held constant, this would increase the operating profit for the year by
approximately RMB2.360.826417 (2015 RMB 1,798,355,679). Conversely, if the FTSE China
ASD Index were to decrease by 1006 (2015: 1090, thos would decrease the operating profit for the
year by an equal amount.

(ii} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market int erest
rates on the fair value of financial assets and liabilities and fiuture cash flow,

As ot 31 December 2006 and 2015, interest rate nisk arises only from bank balances. As the bank
balances held by the Sub-Fund 15 short term in nature and the interest ansimg from these mterest
bearing sssets are mmaterial, the Manager considers that changes in their far valie and future
cash flows in the event of a change m market interest rates will not be material. As a result, the
Manager considers sensitivity analysis of interes rale risk s not necessary (0 be presented.

(i} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will flucmate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Sub-Fund is not exposed to curency risk arising from balances and
transactions in foreign currencies as the majority of s asselts and labilities are denominated in
EME, the Sub-Fund's functional and presentation cumency. As a result, Managers considers
sensitivity analysis of currency risk is not necessary to be presented.

(b} Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterpanty nsk is the sk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to
meet a commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund limits its exposure (o credit and counterparty risk by camrying out the majority of s
mvestmenl transactions and contractueal commitment activities with well-gstablished broker-dealers,
Irenks and regulated exchanges with hagh credit ratmgs,

All transactions in hsted secunties are setiled or paid for upon delivery using approved and reputable
brokers, In addition, the Sub-Fund places bank balances with reputable financial instiutions. As such,
the Mamnager does not consider the Sub-Fund to be exposed to siznificant credit and connterpany nsk.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Sub-Fund placed bank balances of RMB27,455,761 (2015
EMB110,734,726) with The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (*HSBC")
which is the custodian of the Sub-Fund. The S&P credit rating of HSBC is A (2015: AL

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Sub-Fund placed bank balances of RMB 12,822, 162 (2015
EMBE 100,388,864 ) and investments of RMB 17,177,372,883 (2015: RMB18,232 458 944 ) with HSBC

Barnk {China) Company Limited (“*HSBC China™), which is the PRC custodian of the Sub-Fund, The
Moody's credit rating, of HSBC China is Al (2015 Al
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(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The maximum exposure 1o creddt risk a5 at 31 December 2006 and 2015 is the carmying amount of the
finamcial assets as shown on the statement of fnancial position.

The Manager considers that none of assels ane impaired nor past doe a5 at 31 December 2016 and 2015,
(c) Liquidity risk

Luquudity risk is the nsk that the Sub-Fund may not be able 1o generate sufficient cash resources 1o
settle its obligations m full as they fall due or cam only do so on terms that are materally
disadvantageons,

The Sub-Fund is exposed to daily redemptions of wnits in the Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund invests the
majorty of its assets in securities that ave traded in an active market which can be meadily disposed of.

The mble below analvses the Sub-Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturty groupings based on
the remaining period af the reporting date to the contractual maturity date, The amounts in the table are
the contractual undscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances,
as the mpact of discounting is not significant.

Lessthan | month o less Owver
1 month than 3 months 3 months Total
RMEB RME RMBE RAMB
As al 31 December 2016
Management fee pavable 15,084,826 - - 15,084,826
Trustee fiee pavable - 1,334,177 - 1,334,177
License fee payatie - 10,065,032 - 10,065,032
Cther accounis payahle - 720 456,152 456,872
Contractual cash outflow 15,084,826 11.399.92% 456,152 26,940,907
As at 31 December 2015
Amounts due to participating
deglers 50,270,324 - - 50270324
Ammonnts due to brokers 45,247,158 - - 45,247,158
Management fee payable 15,335,223 - - 15,335,223
Trustee fee payable - 1.354.716 - 1354715
License fee pavable - 5,007 631 - 5,007,631
Other accounts payabls - 4,081 250,681 254,762
Contractual cash outllow 110,852,705 6366428 250,681 117,469,814
26
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
() Liguidity risk (Continued)

Unuts are redeemed on demand @t the unitholder*s option, As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there
were 2 {2015: 2 unitholders holding more than 10% of the Sub-Fund’s units.

The Sub-Fund manages its liquidity risk by investing in securities that it expects to be able to liquidate
within 7 days or less. The following table illustrates the expected liquidily of assets held:

Less than 1to 12 Mo stated
1 month ot hs Aty Tdal
RMEB RAE RME RME
Asat 31 December 2016
Todal asseis 17,217,650,806 1,668 1,383,200 17219035674
As at 31 December 20015
Total assels 17457,520,112 13,191 990,581,622 15.448,114,925

(d) Falr value estimatlon

The Sub-Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
sigi ficance of the mpuis used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

s Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

¢ Inpuis other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

+  Inpuis for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
nputs) (level 3.

The level in the fair valne hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety 15 determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant (o the fair value
measirement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an inpul & assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety. If' a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable mpats, that meassurement is a level 3 measurement,
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement i its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Sub-Fund.
The Sub-Fund considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly

distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources
that are actively involved i the relevant market,
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
{d) Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Fund’s financial assets (by class)
measured at fair value at 31 December 2016 and 2015

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
RME RME RME RME
As at 31 December 2016
Assets
Financial assets al fair valoe
through profit or loss
- Equity securiies 17,008 958,045 168,414,838 - 17,177,372.883
Tetal assets 17,008.958.045 168,414,838 - 17177372883
I 3 - 4
As al 31 December 2015
Assels
Financial assets at fair valne
through profit or loss
= Equity securities 17,246,396.522 086,062,422 - 18,232,458 944
Total assels 17,246,396,522 986,062,422 - 18.232.458,944

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified
within level 1, include active listed equities. The Sub-Fund does not adjust the quoted price for these
Instrments,

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or allernative pricing sources suppored by observable mputs
are classified within level 2. Management has used bes estimation and assessed all available
information and considers that the last traded price is the best etimation of the fair value of level 2
imvestmenis as at 31 December 2016 and 201 5.

As al 31 December 2006, one Listed equity investment amounted 1o RMB 168,414 838, represented
0.98% of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund, was suspended for trading due to voluntary business
regmcturing. The snspended ingmument as a8 31 December 2016 has resumed trading on 26 January
2017.

As at 31 December 2015, one listed equity investment amounted to RMBY936,062.422, represented
5.38% of the net assel value of the Sub-Fund, was suspended for trading due to voluntary business
resgmucturing. The suspended instrument as at 31 December 2015 was disposed of during the vyear
ended 31 December 2016,

The suspended equity investment of RME 168,414,838 (2015 RMBY986,062,422) has been transfemred
from level 1 to level 2 and classified as level 2 investment dunng the year ended 31 December 2016
and 2015, Transfer between levels of the fair value hieprchy are deemed to have occurred at the
beginning, of the reporting period.
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinued)
{d) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Investments classified within level 3 have significant uncbservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.
Az al 31 December 20016 and 2015, the Sub-Fund did nat hold any investimenis classified in level 3,

The assets and liabilities included in the statement of financial position, other than financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, are carried at amortised cost, their carmying value are
approximation of far valee. There are no other assets and habilites not carned al far valoe bt for
which fair vahie iz disclosed.

(€} Capital risk management

The Sub-Fund’s capital is represented by the redeemable units outstanding. The Sub-Fund's objective
is to provide imvestment resulls that comespond generally (o the performance of the respective mdex.
The Manager may:

+  Redeem and issue new units on a daily basis in accordance with the constitutive documents of the
Sub=Fund,

* Exercise discretion when determining the amount of distributions of the Sub-Fund to the
unitholders; and

= Suspend the creation and redemption of units under certain circumstance as cumently disclosed in
the Prospectus of the Sub-Fund.

DISTRIBUTION
2016 2015
RME RAE
Final distnbiition
RMBO.27 per unit cn 1.753,000.000 units 473,310,000 413,750,000

{2015 RMB0.25 per unit on 1.655,000,000 units)

The final distritation of EMBO.27 (2015 RMBO.25) per unit on 1,753,000, 000 (20015; 1,655,000,000) units
outstandmg on the ex-dividend date 16 December 2006 (2015 18 December 2015) was paid on 29 December

2016 (2015: 28 December 20150

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Az of 31 December 2016 and 2015, other than mvestments as disclosed in the financial statements which are
classified as fAnancial assets &t fair value through profit or loss, all fimancial assets including depost reserve,
interest receivable and bank balances are categorized as loans and receivables and carried at amontised costs.
Allthe financial liabilities of the Sub-Fund are carmed at amortised cost,

The camying vale of the financial assets and liabilities are considered by the Manager to approximate their
fair value as they are short term in nature and the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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CROP FTSE CHINA AS0 ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT LIMITATION AND PROHIBITIONS UNDER THE SFC CODE

Pursuam to the SFC's Guidelines for Regulating Index Tracking Exchange Trade Funds {the “ETF
Guidelimes™), the Sub-Fund's holding of any such constitnent securities may nol exceed their respective
weightings in the underlying index, except where the weightings are exceeded as a result of changes in the
composition of the undedymg mdex and the excess 15 only transiional and temporary m nature, The Manager
and the Trustee have confirmed that the Sub-Fund has complied with thiz limit during the years ended 31
Drecember 2016 and 20135,

There were no constitnent secunties that indmvadually accounted for more than 10246 of the net asset value of the
Sub-Fund and their respective weightings of the FTSE China AS50 Index as af 31 December 2016 and 20135.

Daring the vear ended 31 December 2016, the FTSE China AS0 net retum index decreased by 4.26% while the
net asset valee per unit of the Sub-Fund decreased by 7.32%.

During the period from 1 January 2015 to 27 February 2015, the FTSE China AS0 price retum index decreased
by 5.57% while the net asset value per unit of the Sub-Fund decreased by 5.32%. During the period from 27
February 2015 to 31 December 200135, the FTSE China AS0 net retum index increased by 0.52% while the net
asget value per unit of the Sub-Fund decreased by 0.95%.

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENT

The Manager has entered into soft commission arrangements for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
period from 21 Jamary 2015 to 31 December 2015 with some brokers under which certain goods and services
used to support mvestment decision making are obtained from third parties and are paid for by the brokers in
consideration of transactions of the Sub-Fund directed to the brokers. These may include, for example.
research and advisory services; economic and political analysis, portfolio analysis, mcloding valuation and
performance measurement, market analysis, data and guotation services; cleanng, registrar and custodial
services and investment-related publication; computer hardware and sofiware mcidental to the above goods
and services.

The Manager confirms that there has been no soft commission arangement existing, in relation to directing
transactions of the Sub-Fund through a broker or dealer for the period from 1 January 2015 o 20 Jamary 2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Manager makes the drategic resonrce allocations on behalf of the Sub-Fund and has determined the
operating segments based on the reports reviewed which are used 1o make strategic decisions.

The Manager considers that the Sub-Fund has a single operating segment which 15 mvesting in secunities, The
objectives of the Sub-Fund are to track the performance of the FTSE China AS0 Index and invest in
substantially all the index constituents with security weight and industry weight that are closely aligned with
the characteristics of the tracked index,

The intemal financial information used by the Manager for the Sub-Fund's assets, liabilities and performance
i5 the same as that disclosed in the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensve income,

The Sub-Fund is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Sub-Fund's income is derived from investments in PRC
securities which constitute FT 5E China AS0 Index, the tracked imdesx.

The total of non-current assets of the Sub-Fund located in PRC in RMB 1,383,200 (201 5: RME4.519,200). The
Sub-Fund has no other assets classified as non-current assets, As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Sub-Fund

has a diversified portfolio of investments and no single investment accounts for more than 10% of the Sub-
Fund's net asset value.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Trostee and the Manager on 28 April 2007,
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Unandited)

Az ar 31 December 2016
Fair value 0% of net
Huoldings RNB assels
Investments (99 91%)
Listed equities (99.91%)
China {(99.91%)
AGRICULTURAL BANK OF CHINA A SHS ORD CNY'1 165,324,240 524,905,144 305
BANK OF BEDING COLTDORD CNY 1 CL A 51,809 006 503,655,899 294
BANK OF CHINALTD A SHS ORD CNY1 101,136,909 347,910,967 2.02
BANK OF COMMUNICATIONSLTD A SHRES ORD CNYI 96055016 554,237 442 322
BYD COLTD A SHRS ORD CNY 2608423 129,586,703 0.75
CHINA CITIC BANK CORP A SHES ORD CNY1 13,070,905 83,784,501 .49
CHINA COMMUNICATIONS CONSTRUCTION COLTD A
SHE ORD NPV 6,766,017 102,775,798 .60
CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK A SHS ORI CNY1 43437402 236,299 467 137
CHINA EVERBRIGHT BANK COLTD AORD CNYI Gix 861,390 261,428,035 1.52
CHINA LIFE INSURANCE CO A SHS ORD NPV 6,995,066 168,511, 140 095
CHINAMERCHANTS BANK A SHE ORD CHNY1 56,794,541 999 583,922 581
CHINAMERCHANTS SHEKOU INDUSTRIAL ZONE CO LTD
ORD CNY1 9862600 161,648,162 .94
CHINAMINSHENG BANKING CO LTD A SHRE ORD CNY 110,509,387 1,004,333,234 3.84
CHINA NATIONAL NUCLEAR POWER CO LTD ASHS ORD
CHWYl 18,671,959 131,824,031 077
CHINA PACIFIC INSURANCE GROUP A SHR ORD CNY1 12088523 335,698,284 195
CHINA PETROLEUM & CHEMICAL CORP CL A ORD CNY1 45853.671 248,068,360 1.44
CHINARAILWAY GROUPLTD A ORD CNY1 26,525 768 237,711,744 138
CHINA RAILWAYS CONSTRUCTION CORP A SHS ORD
CHY1 18.217.081 217 876,408 1.27
CHINA SHENHUA ENERGY CO LTD ASHS ORD CNY'1L Q497095 153,662,997 .89
CHMA SHIPEUILDING INDUSTREY COLTD A SHR ORD
CNY1 42,291,398 2949 846,012 1.74
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORP LTE
A SHE ORD CHNY1 57,581485 510,171,957 297
CHINA YANGTZE POWER CO LTD CL A ORD CNY1 19001015 240,552,850 1.40
CITIC SECURITIES COLTD A SHR ORD CNY1 AT.297.706 599,001,158 348
CRRC CORP LTD ASHR ORD CNY1 37410450 365,500,096 213
DAQIN RAILWAY COLTD A SHS ORD CNYI 25,553,788 180,920,819 1.05
GF SECURITIES COLTD A SHE ORD CNY1 12214227 205,931,867 1.20
GOUSEN SECURITIES CO LTD 5902116 91,777,904 .53
GREENL AND HOLDINGS CORPORATION LIMITED A SHRS
ORDI1 CNY1 8,759,055 T6,291 369 .44
GUANGZHOU AUTOMOBILE GROUP CO LTD A SHES ORD
CHY1 1,824,100 42,264,397 0.25
GUOTAIIUNAN SECURITIES COLTD A SHRS ORD NPV 16,100,251 209 303666 1.74
HAITONG SECURITIES COLTD CL AORD CNY'1 28779207 453,272,510 2.64
HANGZHOU HIKVISION DIGIT AL TECHNOLOGY CO LTD
A SHS ORD MNPV 7614822 181,308,012 1.06

32
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CSOP FTSE CHINA ASD ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOF ETF SERIES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Unandited)
Az ar 31 December 2016

[nvestments (99.91%) (continued)
Listed equities (99.91%) (continuwed)

China (%2.91% ) (cont nwed)

HEDY HOLDING COLTD A SHS ORD CNY1

HUATAI SECURITIES CO LTD A SHS ORD CNY'1

NDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINALTD A
SHSORD CNY

INDUSTRIAL BANK COLTD A SHR ORD CNY1

JIANGSU ¥ ANGHE BREEWERY JONT-STOCK COLTD A
SHE ORD CHY'L

KEWEICHOW MOUTAI CO LTD A SHR ORD CHY1

MIDE A GROUP COMPANY LIMITED A SHR ORD NPV

NEW CHINA LIFE INSURANCE CO LTD A SHES ORD NPV

PETROCHINA COLTD A SHESCNY1

PING AN BANK COLTD A SHE ORD CNY1

PING AN INSURANCE (GROUP) CO OF CHINA LTD A SHR
ORD CNY1

POLY REAL ESTATE GROUP CO LTD A SHR ORD CNYI

SAIC MOTOR CORP LTD A SHR ORD CNY

SHANGH Al INTERNATIONAL PORT GR LTD A SHR ORD
CNY1

SHANGH Al PUDONG DEVELOPMENT BANK COLTD A
SHR ORD CNY1

SHANGH Al RAAS BLOOD PRODUCTS CO LTD A SHR ORD
CHNY1

SHENWAN HONGYU AN GROUP COLTD A SHRS ORD
CNY1

WULIANGYE YIBIN COLTD A SHS ORD CWHYL

Total investments
Other net assets

MNet assets attributable to unitholders at 31 December 2016

Total investments, at cost

177/323
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Fair value %o of net

Holdings EMB assets
2.516,267 35,907,130 0.21
12,576,704 224619933 1.31
103,499,173 456,431,353 2.66
65825216 1062418986 6518
1.741.311 122,936 557 0.72
2170941 725419935 4.32
16885632 475,668,253 2w
2,701,506 113,271,933 0.69
19,424,366 154423710 0.90
34.603.650 314893215 1.33
44,184,368 1,565452,158 2.11
28444350 2596596914 1.51
11,1 00.300 260,536,535 1.52
15.567.268 79704412 046
50,831,745 323,981,586 4.79
3812455 38,029 586 0.5]
26,946,374 168,414,838 0.95
8.370324 283919002 .63
17.177.372.883 9991

14,721,884 0.0

17.192.094.767 13O

16,646,672,338
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(2017 28 )

17,253,191,763.54
(278,293,983,146 )

153,317,836.13
(2,473,016,697 )

17,099,873,927.41
(275,820,966,449 )

1,663,000,000.00

10.2825
(166 )
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(2017 30 )
253,333,333
( 3,623 )

253,333,333

* ( 622 )(2014 )
2
ETF
2017 30 31
3,260,236,719.84 ( 3628 3200 )
(2017 30 )
( )

183,685,696.20
11,133,022.40

194,818,718.60

2,558,465,330.13
115,010,628.00
210,686,365.49

18 2,884,162,323.61

117,610,715.58

117,610,715.58

55,365,199.87

55,365,199.87

8,279,762.18

8,279,762.18

3,260,236,719.84

31 ( 3,628 3,200 )
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( ©) (4) )

131

2017 28
( =14.30 )

@

CSOP
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CSOP
2016 12 31
S N1EF 26EF 215F 015F
& FI =F 4! FHELE HEM
xE
HExE
EREEEEE g 5,961, 793 B5253540 5,586,555 84,178,137
EMT AT Fa 10 - - 8355415 119,452 435
BEHEaEE 1) 1,537,643 21908295 31,114 44,970
7,458,435 107,241,955 14273112 204,105,502
EhEE
PEEELCTRERGETHEZh SE/EE T4 463, BT 515 BT 165755 314067705 4491 155, 153
EHIT R M Fa) 10 12,556,514 185,252.440 - -
HEOASILICHT 2EHE 2e) - - 1372675 13,805,253
T Mfth AR 11 47,812,305 B3 715953 52,5684 650 753,251,181
mEEMmESnFEHICL DRIRE - - 3,430,738 455,074, 553
pEEAst~ 0 ITE - - SRATR TS 1,428,207, 505
Rask LUFRERSH 275,445,473 3, SR 26 297 184,528 4245, 45 700
300,002,405 11, 440,034,352 TR 71T 11.437,890,953
wESH B2, 901,541 11, 547,27 2 B14,122029 11,541,959, 455
o
AHEFICRR T SBTEE
B 14 20l 28, 06 4, 085013524 2 28 465,015,524
T it sk 2,567,356 CAEVNLY 39120 55,564,455
Fl SR 236,225,504 3,234,995, 107 301719814 4,514, 305,7340
Aty EE 4,457,741 3, T R 477520 5,7, 535
BExELT 517,515,797 7400475557 S 579004 8,505,909, 757
A
A
= F(3) 2,170,807 74,242 540 27,629,240 35,058, 152
HEDASILICHT 2ERH 205 1,703,955 24452900 - -
FHLER LT Ot DiEH 74, R, O3 1,071998,113 S2EE3717 1,329,557,153
& .60 80, 180,000 1,255,255 000 - -
REZFUFICREET 2Bl ES o, 50 34 1,385,818.87% 20,530,058 1415,281,412
209,505,044 4, 14600429 219443825 3,138, M, 658
BxwEk-AKast B2, 901,541 11, 547,276,752 B14,12009 11,5641,95,455
10 63 CSOP

2017 4 21

Ding Chen Zhang Gaobo
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CSOP
2016 12 31
EE A&E 2EE 2LFF 2015
FEE H+M FEFE H+M
R £k 18, 202Xt 297086, 555 4248, 337737 46 714,303 &,59650,014,553
F2um 2,575,653 122 675167 2 546,310 IR
BRdsUm 2. 1,368,325 19,855,043 336,927 481505
T Mt IR 88 1,281,195 18,321,089 195,753 2 B42655
BEEEE L TAEMBETAE I hIERmEER
SFEmBEOE (BE) SHE 17 (11,121,229 [ 153033455 25,524,452 365,000,093
EMTEEREEICEIHERRE S (BX) 10 301,009 4,304429 (1,225317) (26,102,050
ERSEER (3,517,183 (SEOL5TLT) (12,843005) (183E55,014)
EXHGS 295,597,361 4,198,442 252 A0, 752458 7,160, 760,550
BEeR 18 (189290,717) (2706285253 (298, 2544 (4,271 450,555)
BRIl HHE 104,340, B 1,492, 157,009 202049 542 2,58 309,881
FA2R Ei=) (13, 164,235) (27,057,141 (35,528 557 (SR, 58T
e CEE &5, 181,509 1,218, 05, 2 165,519,045 2.331,235.214
HEONBH -
witth E ¥ i 55,905, 650 1,222, 0, 767 167,559,114 2,79, 524,330
LB E R (321,51 (4 B0255E) (1,085,163 (15282, 117)
85,181,509 1,218,099, 259 168,519,045 2.331,235.214
FTOR2EHE
FORREI-ESHIAS_LHikHEH
=T HE AT R (RS EF MR 2 10 - - (3,547,900 (137.964,570)
ENTREaREEOSEBEICEIHERME
S R ED 10 301,009 43442 (1,225317) (26,102,053
REICBESHI WA THEEREE DL ED
iEIC1R SEEsEIE (FIE) SHBE 10 (301,009 (4304429 1,225,317 2, 102033
BB (1,345,018 (19733729 (1,300,092) [ 19278,401)
®3liE
FTOR2EAEL (1,345,016 (19233729 (11,057.993) (157343,371)
LM EEAEs St B, 5, T 1,158, 858,140 155,471 547 2,205,391 742
PEHEORE -
S B4 158, 674 1,273, 469 008 155,551,114 2793, B0 959
SR (321,581 (480 2598) (1,063,163 (15269,117)

LM 2B ST 3,556, 793 1,15, 586, 140 155,481,347 2,225,539 242

183/323



EDINETOOOO
OO00DOo0oDOo0ooDo0ooogOonoO(E27318)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

CSOP
2016 12 31
A = A M &M ¥ T S fo & s

et =P L E S v] =HF ) HEM wF HEM = E L EA ] =E HEM wF HiEM@
1M1 AL EHE T, 266, K66 #0613 14,550,500 A3TIIET 32270, 70 &, 615, Tk, 000 G506 &4 T 7520 - - 95266 04, 773,204
nENE
ET Futi - - - - 1ET5E 1 2350 504,330 167,550 114 1,300,504, 33) (LRl 15,2359117) 166, 519545 1,351,554
TR aENE
W TR (C R DR
& - DT (137,54, 50 - - 0, G700 {13796, 970 ) - - 19,647,500 L3706, 57)
W SR i R el M
Lok ik m - - (1515,317) (26,108, 053 ) - - 1,85517 (26100, 053 ) - - -
WECRSEE NN E
R A W IR T W
wx W 1547 26102033 - - Lal,317 26102033 - - - -
Al ey - - (1390,055) (1987 401 ) - - 11,500 05 (19ETHHL Y - - (1,350, 055) ARFFAILY
TR RENE &8 - - 1037058 {137,33,371) 1ET5E 1 2350 504,330 156,551, 1L¢ 1, E5 6,050 (LRl 15,2359117) 1E 43T 1,903,790, 344
B CERER X 5N
EXFCEAMAE N
. oqE
FraETHRBL T EIR SN
& . - . - - - - - 5,379 63771 LEETA 35,6771
MREL S I - - - - (L 50,000 ) (2, LT ER5000 ) (L3, E50, ) (2 657 656, 00 - - (L3, L5000y (2,65 658,000
EERPEN - - - - (LS 650,0007 2, 687,655,000 ) [L&S, E30, 000 (2 69 658,000y 3,551 657,11 (L&, 50L,209) (2,614,057, 255
2015%217 8 31 HFp T, 206 KEE +IEILEI 351290 BTN 301, 71951 314,565, 30 a3 552 FA5ILLE 4T 345,10 I ST FM05,M575T
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CSOP
2016 12 31
he 1.7 e Rl i L E B e M ¥ TR E A FERESM
= E HA&[ = HER =HF BHAEM E-E AN EA ] =EE I HE[@ =4 Rl HAER

201 i 1E 1 H By 284K 0L 4,005,015, 54 3802907 5,504, 455 301, TL9E14 4,514,556 340 SEREREE] FHI5I0L 163 4,770, 0 5,345,550 OO B IEHATIT
AENE
E L - - - - 5,503 000 LI T 5,503,690 L222701, %7 2L {4, C02 A 5,18, 80 1 21505RE0
ToROENE
MHATREREEEETRCRIMAE
WSS BEE] 10 - - B0L008 304429 - - -
WELCESFEE Nz m TR
RN CE SN (RS S

i - - {01, 00 {4,304 4250 - - - - - - - -
ARBE e - - {135,000} 15,53, %) - - (1,345,010 (18,235, 729 - - (1,343,010} (15233729}
TaRAENE SN - - {L5,00) 1553, 79 5,503, 650 LI LT MI5EETH L2034 09,033 LB {4, C02 A 33,650, 7 L1SH6 140
REGERERT LA ENKNN
CE3MHEL N B~OHE
EREE & 4 - - - - {90, L, a0y 11,260,265, 0 ) 190,180,000 ) {1,250, 255,000y (90,1 00, 00y (L 2an 255000
HEE L 1+ - - - - 70,340,000 (1,003,002, § [0S0, 000 {1,013, 012, iy - - (700,340,000 ) [L015012000)
i kNE M - - - - hGROE T 12,302, 300, i ) (1EL 00,000 Y 2,30, 300, i) - < {LEL, i, iy {2,302 300,000
2016817 A 31 HiR 294,266,666 4,065,015, 54 236755 3,720,770 226,225,304 3234 L0T S13055056 T336T50,81 457, TH 63,73, 65K AT T T 00,475,557
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CSOP
2016 12 31

1 WEE MEF MI5E MI5E

& E B+H & B+H

HEEB LSS r a7 O-
BEIEHCLDIFr v aT70- 15 B.765, 156 926,113,550 254,579,509 AT
EAH DTS (2232718 (1535755 T) (45,563317) (651555439
BEFHCLEZFo bR Fe a0 - 42 430458 B0 755,650 AR G715 2988, 318546
EEEBICLBE vy aTO-
EREBETEEORS g (3276331 (46,851,533 [4,058.37%) [32/054.220)
Bl MBI sE 1,368,725 153, 4 3,927 4 81805
RO oF 8,575, 655 122575,157 2545310 784275
BEEH LSy - Fr e aF0- BAMETT 95576 A5 (1075142 (15374531
MBEHICLBtr v a70—-
TEBEESMLDERLLY - - 5845.791 B5.657.711
EH AL 14 (A0, EA0000) £ 1,003,012 000 (15, 550,000) (2, E7525000)
BMBEH LIS b Fr o270 - 0,240,000 {1013, 012000 (182 801 205 (2614057209
Ras LUrRaFEhoE GBL) <80 (21, 718855) (310,57 627) 25,096,341 5, B
1A 188 s DIl & B LR &R 297184, 727 4,249 443 200 2IL0ETART 200, 555084
H;AESoRsELFELAEYN 275,445473 5T, 26 257, 164,528 4 249 449 700
dablUisASHESZOAR
ERHLHEES 275341371 3.937.381 405 297E5513 8 245 320 55

FLHR & 104, 102 1 458,659 RS L 127055

25445475 3SEEEN A 116 520 4243 445 FE0
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CSOP
1
CSOP
1 4 9
Suite 2802, Two Exchange Square, 8 Connaught
Place, Central, Hong Kong
2016 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
9
2016 2015 12 31
9
2
21
HKFRS
622
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CSOP
2
2.1
@
2016 1 1
(i) HKFRS9
AFS
FVOCI
(b) FVOCI AFS
©) FVPL HKFRS 9
HKAS 39
HKAS 39
ECL

FVOCI HKFRS 15
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21

CSOP
@
(i) HKFRS9
HKFRS 9 2018 1 1
(i) HKFRS15
HKICPA
HKAS 11
(d) -HKFRS 15
(e -
(f) HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 2018 1 1
(i) HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16
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HKFRS9

HKFRS9

HKAS 18

HKFRS 15

12



21

22

CSOP

@

(i) HKFRS16

2019 1 1

@
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HKFRS 16

acquisition method



CSOP

22

(b)
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39

50

28
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CSOP

24

@

(b)

(©

(i)
(i)

(iii)
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CSOP

25

(6206 B OV)

26

2.7

271
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2.7
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@

(b)

(©)

272

12

12

12
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2.7

272

273

274

275

@
(b)
(©
(d)
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2.16
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

12

199/323

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP

217

(iv)

2.18

2.19
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CSOP

@

2016 2015 12 31 3

3(b) 3

N 1EEHE 01 01 5 N15E
M Sk b B Al

FeRT s *FREHIZSHORE
— LB {Fe 42162011 #02,020 527 - y
— gk bR E{EER 270400800 3008 248 555 137320476 1,964, 540207

4B TUEEIEI0 4599, 772,193 137320476 1,964,540,207
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CSOP
20165 016+ 201 5+ 201 5%
EiE H+M EEFL B
BEE 77 F~0EH
— LISHEEE(EE - - 21962 146 314,058 522
— 3k RI2TRE(EE 26131521 1,231420750 T0322.15% 105,606,831
&5t 26131521 1231480750 03284302 13196435519
2015E 201EE 201 5 2015
EiE H+M EEFL B
FEH 77 FERA U FRERE
— kigHA OIE BRI 140949564 20153520193 192304850 2749 050913
— RISFEEE(EE 5032146 71959488 - -
— [ FEEL & 230090731 3276126153 20472 512 421 842 722
&5t 375021541 5363466036 231783400 3171502634
20165 016+ 201 5+ 201 5%
EiE Fa =] EHEFL =)
FNATF ¢ FEalfdh
f8ik Hal U 7 o IE {E =EE 2 1 S At
g5E O&Et 2574753 36218063
AITETRIS  BE32165755 IAPET TR 4491162153
2016E 2016E 2015 2015
EiE R HaAM EEFNL HAH
eI T R
—FF RIZIRERL 12956214 125282 440 2355415 119,482 435
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CSOP
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
20165 2016 20167 20155 201 5 201 5%
HE F. HAME  HaviEskEE HiE F . HEM  NavRkEE
1 2972131 M52 4115 192304280 27400500173 03
F A 42410021 A6, 463 300 219 31001777 44355 411 0.52
Cic 100172 1301874460 17.% 2150933 £ AL e 362
FANLTL ¥ 3279424 55475763 0.7 - - -
Fo N 158722 22697375 0.31 - - -
Lo - 23136 564 31567265 4.2 433320 3,123 369 0.2l
EEt IMS02L 5 5RAEE0H a4 TTEAN RITLAREH nH
2016 2015 12 31
2016 12 31
3 144,767,288
77,334,417 43,976,709 3

27.97% 14.94% 8.50%

2015 12 31
3

70,539,132 36,376,911 26,140,871 3
11.86% 6.12% 4.40%
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CSOP
2016 2015 12 31
1016412831 H PR
FEED 7 HoNT SRR
HBLAG A ER AT HER L
& ERE & ERE HETTZURD SN M- BT MR- BT
FaiEIr o b =) HiaH TR I — & =i E HEM
ceopl L B R OEE S - . 172,455,590 2,400 550,837 CHF DT - FO-F - HoH - LRITE 1 B a0,02540¢
L R Rk
AwFwhz
CECEF b F 2 L F +2,162,511 032,575,677 L F e PEEBEE - w105 H- LIEE08s  +E 1THSTRI0L
Sedra—pbk o B= A R 07T -1
it FEIF BlLAbk A Fuha
IR e U e 0,511,720 1,255, 750, 590 B LI 0% H- QAL R LISETA00
AnEIFLE
CECED P T Fapw 16,150,559 F1,511,173 TR 0% H- LilEme e 25,151,114
FrZa-cREITw-
FrEFub s Pup
HOo-z 77wk
371, 662,510 4,550, 775 Lz H- 28530 O g0 T
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CSOP
3
@
20164512 H 31 BRI
EEMIr P~ oRE
HEL T W AIER &2 TR &
£ EAF I SEFIE EF i N ErERE HFEE-~ oS HEE~ oS
REHIF ok Eik P B[ HWEN L — +E% =ik L B4
F oAt H PSS 417 550 507104 e (B +HOE - WEM 208570
AF EnaFe Pl F e
FoZa=- oAt fFa
ZF¢—2AFE
F oAt PSS TE2T0ES 105 G765 ML (E +HOS - 35635 PEEEd
A Eulears P ABENE N
E il T ol ) A I DN
COOPL e FIL Iz A F st Lo26.00E IN,0ELT1E Lo 2NN +i 5% +H- TER 45 +i- 11001534
Fya--1TU-p23F2F
5P
36.131521 LE1,830,750 +i- 4,306, 576 +i- 6L ET
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CROP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2o 6

Note 2016 2015
HEs HEs$
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Pro plant and equip'nent 5 5,961,793 5.886,583
A\’Eﬁl]-:r?;-fnr-sale financial assets gla), 10 - :‘3355..]15
Deferred tax asset o{b) 1,537.043 31,114
799,436 14,273,112
Current assets
Finaneial assets at fair value through peofit or loss ala) 463,787,815 314,067,703
Available-for-sale financial assets glal, 10 12,656,514 -
Amount due from immediate holding compamy 2odc) - 1,372,675
Other receivables 11 47,812,300 =0 B84 608
Receivable from sale of an investment - 34.480,7358
Deposit with an investment manager - 90,870,575
Cash and cash equivalents 275,445,473 207,164.328
&00,002.405 799.849,717
Total assets Ho7.501.891 H14,122,82q
EQUITY
]:‘g;ﬂl}' attributable to the owners of the
mpany
Share capital 14 284,266,666 284,266,660
Other reserves 2567886 2,912,902
Retained eam:'ngs Doy, 00 BEkY 201,715 814
Non-controlling nterests 4,457,741 4,779,022
Total equity 517,515,797 594.675,004
LIABILITIES
Current linbilities
Current tax liabilities Bla) 26,170,807 27,629,240
Amounnt due 1o immiediate hu]di.uimn bty 2o{e) 1,700,093 .
Acerued linbilities and other payables 744,904,903 9z2,983,mM7
Dividend payable G0, 160100 -
Non-controlling interests derived from investment funds gh.oS0n.991 o8 830,868

280,986,044 210,443,825
Total equity and linbilities 807,501,341 814,122,829

The consolidated financial statements on pages 10 to &3 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21
April 2017 and were signed on its behalf:

Ding Chen Zhang Gaobo

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CROP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note 2016 2015
HES HE%
Revenue 16, 2o{a )b} 207,086,555 486,714,303
Interest incoms 8,578,683 2,646,110
Dividend income 1,388,325 336,927
Oither income 1,281,195 198,789
Net (losses) fenins on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss 17 (11,121,223} 25,524,482
Net realized gains/{losses} on available-for-sale
financial assets 10 FM, 009 1,825,417}
et foreign exchange losses {a,917,183) (12,843,008}
Operating profit 293,597,361 500,752,486
Operaling expenses 18 (189,250,m17) (298,702,844}
Profit before tax 100, 300,609 202,049,642
Tax expense Gia) (19,164,835} (35,520,697}
Profit for the vear 85,181,800 166,515,045
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 85,503,600 167,589,114
Non-controlling interest {321,881} {1,060, 165}

85181809 166,519,945

Other comprehensive income:

Itemns that may be subsequently reclassified

to profit or loss
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial
asspls 16 - {9,647.900}
Net realised goains{losses) in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets 10 O, 000 (1,825,117}
Net realized (gains}/ losses in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets reclassified to profit or loss 10 {p0om, 000 ) 1,825 017
Curreney translation differences {1,345,016) (1,300,008}
Other comprehensive income for the vear,

net of tax 11,345,016} {11,087.598)
Total comprehensive income for the year 83,836,793 155.481,047
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company Bya58,67 150,551,116
Mon-controlling interest {321,881) (1,060,160}
Total comprehensive income for the year 83,836,793 1554 81,947

The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

-11 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited hability}

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Non-
Share Other Retained controlling
Note capital [ESATVES earnings Total interest
HES HES HES HES HES
Ralance at 1. Jannary 2015 o84, 260,666 14,950,000 qo0 780,700 f21,908,266 - i
Comprehensive income
Profit for the vear . " 167,580,114 167,550,119 {1,060,160) 1

Other comprehensive income
Change in fair value of available-for-sale

financial assets 10 - {g6497.900) - {9.647,900) - '
Net realised losses in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets 16 - (1,825,317} - {1,825.317)

Wet realised losses in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets reclassified to

profit or loss 16 - 1,828 337 - 1,825.317

Currency translation difference < (1,300,008 ) . (1,290,008}
Total pther comprehensive income - (11,097,.008) 167,580,114 156,550,116 (1,000,169} 1
Transactions with owners in their o

capacity as owners
Non-controlling interests ansing on new

subsidinry . . 5. 848,701
Dividend paid 14 - - (1886500000 (188.650,000) - {18
Total transaction with owners in

their capacity as owners - - (1886500000 (188.650,000) 5848 701 (2
Balance at 31 December 2015 284,260,066 Fo12.902 301,719,814 589,809,352 HTTGIZ _54

The acesmpanying notes form an integral part of these eonsolidated financial statements.

- 12 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Mot

Balanee at 1 January 2016

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Net realized gains/(losses) in fair
value of available-for-sale
financial assets 16
Net realized (gains}/ losses in fair
value of available-for-sale
financial assets reclassified to
profit or loss 16
Currency translation difference

Total other comprehensive
income

Transactions with owners in

their capacity as owners
Dividend declared 14
Drividend paid 14

Total transaction with owners
in their capacity as owners

Balance at 31 December 2016

Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Tat
capital FESCEVES BAFTIINES Total interest ikl
HEs HES$ HE3 HES HKs HE
284,266,666 azgoz  3oume814 589899382 4779022 594.679.0¢
85.503.600 85,508,000 {321, 881) 85.181,8¢C
201,000
{301,004} -
(1,345,016} (1,345,006} (1,345.m
(1,345,016} 85.508.660 84,158,674 (321,881} 83,836,79
(goabo000)  (90,160,000) (90,160,00
(ro8qo000)  (Fo840,000) - {7o.8q0,00
{161,000,000) (161,000,000} {161, 000,00
284,266,666 2.567,886 226223504 513,058,056 4457741 5175157

The acesmpanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

240/323
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability}

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note 2016 2015
HEs HEK%

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/{usged in) operating activities 15 g, 763,186 254,536,500
Tax paid (22,332,718) (45,563,317}
Met cash generated from operating activities 42,430,468 208 973,102

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8 {3.276,331) (4,058,379}
Diiviclend roceivid 1,388,325 336,927
Interest received 8,578,683 2,646,710
Net cash generated from {used in) investing activities b,600,677 (1,075,142)

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - 5,848,701
Dividend paid 14 (7o.890,000) (188,650,000}
Net cash nsed in financing activities (ro.840,000) {182 801,200)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (21,718.855) a5, 006,80
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 207,164,328 278 067 487
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 275445473 267,164,328

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at banks 275341371 297,085,513
Cash in hand 1003102 78815
275445473 207,164,328

The accompanying nobes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
General information

CHOF Asset Management Limited (the “Company™) provides asset management services. The
Company 15 licensed by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission to carry out Type 1
(desling in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Tyvpe o (asset management) regulated
activities,

The Company is a limited liahility company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is Suite 2802, Two Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Flace, Central, Hong Kong.

China Southern Fund Management Co. Lid., a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China, is the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2o15, the Company invested in a number of companies and
investment funds with significant shareholding which are recognised as the subsidiaries of the
Company {together, the "Group"). The consolidated financial statements of the Group are
prepaved by management which have consolidated the Company with the investment funds and
the companies, the subsidiaries of the Group, as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 and
for the years then ended. For the details of the subsidiaries, refer to Note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared by conselidating the
financial information of the companies and investment fumds which are regarded as the
subsidiaries of the Group as &t vears ended 21 December 2016 and 2015 and for the years then
ended. Refer to Note g for the details of the subsidianes,

These consolidated financial staternents of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“CGroup”) are presented in HE dollars ("HEKS"), unless otherwise stated,

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HEFRS") and requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies ordinance Cap, 622 The consolidated financial statements have heen prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, and financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss,

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HEFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates, [t also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation { Continued)

(a) New standards and interpretations not vet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual pericds beginning after 1 January 2016, and have not been applied in preparing these
financial statements, The Directors of the Group consider none of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the financial statements of the Group, except the following set out below:

(i) HKERS o Financiali ,

The new standard addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets
and finaneial lialalities, introduces new rules for hedge aceounting and a new impairment model
for financial assets,

While the Group has yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the elassification and measurement
of financial assets, debt instruments corrently classified as available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets would appear to satisfy the conditions for classification as at fair value through other
eomprehensive income (FVOCT) and henee there will be no change to the aceounting for these
assels,

The other financial assets held by the Group inchode:

(h) equity instruments currently classified as AFS for which a FVOCT election is available
() equity investments currently measured at fair value thromgh profit or loss (FVPL) which
would likely contimue to be measured on the same basis under HKFRS 9, and

accordingly, the Group does not expect the new gnidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group's sccounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss and the Group does not have any such linbilities. The derecognition rules
have been transferred from HEAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
have not been changed.,

The new hedze scoounting rules will align the accounting for hedging instruments more elosely
with the Group's risk management practices. As a general rule, more hedge relationships might be
eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard introduces a more principles-based approach.
Accordingly, the Group does not expect a significant impact on the sceounting for its hedging
relationships,

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected
eredit losses (ECL) rather than only incurred eredit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies
to financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCT, eontract
assets under HEFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables, loan
comumitments and certain financial guarantee contracts, While the Group has not vet undertaken
a detailed assessment of how its impairment provisions would be affected by the new modsl, it
may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses,
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation { Continued)

(a) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted {Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its finaneial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the new standard.

HEFRS g must be applied for financial vears commencing on or after 1 January 2018, Based on
the transitional provisions in the completed HEFRS g, early adoption in phases was only
permitted for annual reporting periods beginning before 1 February 2015. After that date, the new
riles must be adopted in their entivety. The Group does not intend to adopt HEFRS o before its
mandatory date,

i) HKFRS15.'R g il .

The HEKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and HEAS 1 which covers construction contracts,
The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognized when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer, The standard permits either & full retrospective or & modified
retrospective approach for the adoption,

Management is currently assessing the effects of applving the new standard on the Group’s
financial statements and has identified the following areas that are likely to be affected:

{d} revenue from service - the application of HKFES 15 may result in the identification of separate
performance obligations which could affect the timing of the recognition of revenme.

{e} accounting for certain costs incurred in fulfilling a contract - certain costs which are currently
expensed may need to be recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15, and

(f) rights of return HEFRS 15 requires separate presentation on the balance sheet of the right to
recover the goods from the customer and the refund obligation.

at this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the impact of the new rules on the Group's finaneial
statements. The Group will make more detailed assessments of the impact over the nest twelve
moaths.

HEKFES 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 Jannary 2018, Ab this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before it effective date,

iTh] HEFRS 16, Teases”

HEFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the balanee sheet, as the distinetion
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item} and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases,

The acconnting for lessors will not significantly change.
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation { Continued)

(a) New standards and interpretations not vet adopted (Continued)
(i) HEFRS16.T ' (Continued)

The standard will affect pimarily the accounting for Group's operating leases. However, the
Group has not vet determined to what extent these commtments will result in the recogmtion of
an asset and a liability for future payments and how this will affect the Group's profit and
classification of cash flows,

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-term and low value leases
and some commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under HEFRS
16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial vears eommencing on or after 1 January 2o1g. At
this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before its effective date,

There are no other HKFRS or HE{IFRIC) interpretations that are not yvet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Subsidiaries
(a} Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferved 1o the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases,

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liahilities incurred and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.  Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assmmed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any nomn-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets,

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.  Profits and losses resulting from inter-company
transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. ‘When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adiusted to conform with the Group's accounting
policies.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

() Separate financial stalements

Investment in subsidiaries at the Company level is aceounted for as investments in
subsidiaries - available-for-sale and stated at fair value in aceordance with HEAS 39
“Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement”,

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying & sharcholding of between 2o% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associales are acconnted for using the equity method of accounting, Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the earryving amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investes after the date of acquisition. The
Group's investment in azsocistes includes goodwill identified on acquizition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate,

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and its share of post-scquisifion movernents in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amwount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
pavments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the assodate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit/{loss) of an associate” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and
its associale are recognised in the Group's financial statemnents only to the extent of unrelated
investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidenee of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure consisteney with the policies agopted by the Group.

The Company has invested in certain investment funds that it manages. The Group has applied
the measurement exemption within HKAS 28 “Tnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures” for

muatual funds, unit trusts and similar entities and such investments are elassified as financial
assets at fair value through peofit or loss,
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

()

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic envireonment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in HE dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactons are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gaing and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at vear-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign eurrencies are recognised in the eonsolidated statement
of comprehensive ineome.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and eash and eash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
“finance income or costs”, All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other gaing/(losses)”,

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrving amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income,

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss, Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(1} assets and liabilities presented are translated at the closing rate at the year end
date;

(ii} income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions}; and

(1ii}  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On eonsolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations are taken to other comprehensive imeome. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
ecjuity are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of
the gain or loss on sale.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
z Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated st historical cost less secumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's careving amount or recognized as a separate assel, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be messared reliably. The carryving amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incareed.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements over lease term
Office equipment 3 - 5 vears
Furniture and fixtures G Years

Motor vehicle 5 YOS

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amonnt if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amonnt,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carryving
amount and are recognised within “other gains/{losses)” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortization and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in eircumstances indicate that the carrying amount may nol be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating wnits}, Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impsirment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.7  Financial assets and liabilities

z.71  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and recetvables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at witial recogmtion. The Group classifies its financial
liabilities as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
z Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.7  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
271 Classification (Continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities at fsir value through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value throngh profit or loss are clas=ified as held for
trading if it is acquired or incurred princpally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term or if on initial recognition is part of a portfolio of identifiable financial
investments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit taking. Dervatives are also categorised as held for trading.

The Group does not classify any derivatives as hedges in a hedging relationship. Finaneial
aszets and liabilities in this category are classified as curvent assets and enrrent liabilities
respectively if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as

mod-current.
h) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which
are classified a5 non-current assets, The Group's loans and receivables comprise mainly
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

{c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-ourrent
assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

z.7.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset, Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financal assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss,
Financial assets carried at fair value throwgh profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership, Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carred at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fir value of the “financial assets/(liabilities} at fair
value through profit or loss” category are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “net gains {losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss™ in the period in which they arise, Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income a2 part of other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established,

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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CHOM ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.7  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
z.7.2 Recognition and measurement {Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the scoomulated fair valoe
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
ineome as “net realised gains/{losses) on available-for-sale financial assets”.

2.7.2 Fairvalue estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderdy transaction bebween markel participants at the measuremnent data. The fair value of
financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets (such as publidy traded dervatives,
exchange traded funds and investment funds} are based on quoted market prices at the cose of
trading on the reporting date. The investments in funds are primarily valued based on the latest
available redemption price of such umits or shares for such fund or the net asset value, as
determined or issued by the respective fund administeators or fund managers, representing the
Company’s share at the net asset value of the investment in funds,

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an sctive market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by nsing valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
method and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each statement of
financial position date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent arm’s
length transactions, reference other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation technigues commonly used by market
participants making the maximum us of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
spectfic inputs.

2.7.4 Derivative financial instruments

Drerivatives are recognized at fair value on the date on which derivative contract is entered into
and are 5LIJ152qIIEI'ItI}" re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from qu.oted market
prices in active markets, including recent market transsctons, and valuation technigues,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Subsequent changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments are recognised immediately in
the staternent of comprehensive income.

2.7.5 Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to
administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements, A structured entity often has some or all of the following features or attributes; (a)
restricted activities, (b) & narrow and well-defined ohiective, such as to provide investment
opportunities for investors by passing on risks and rewards associated with the assets of the
structured entity to investors, (o} insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance its
activities withont subordinated financial support and (d)} financing in the form of multiple
contractually linked instmments to investors that create concentrations of credit or other risks
(tranches).
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CHOM ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.7  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
2.7.5 Strurtured entities (Continued)

The Group considers the investment management arrangement for all investment funds
(“Imvestment Funds”™) under its management to be interests in unconsolidated structured entities,
In aceordance with the terms and conditions of the respective Investment Funds’ investment
management  agreements and offering  documentation, the Group executes day-to-day
management and investment activities of the Investment Funds whose objectives are achieving
long term eapital growth, The Group is remunerated by the respective Investment Funds for their
services. Such compensation generally consists of an asset based fee and a pedformance based
ineentive fee and is refleeted in the valuation of the Investment Funds,

The change in fair value of the investment in investment funds classified as associates, the
unrealised gains/{losses) is included in the “net gains/{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss™ in the profit or loss. The change in fair value of the investment in
investment funds classified as subsidiaries form part of the Group and are accounted for business
eombination using acquisition method.

2.7.6 Impairment of financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses al the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
financial assel or group of finaneial assets is impaired. A finaneial asset or a group of finaneial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are ineurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that oceurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future eash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

If there is obiective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried a1 amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrving amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit lossas that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate, The carryving amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss s the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instmment’s fair value using an
observable market price,

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to am event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the deldor’s credit mating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss.
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CS0P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
z Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.7  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
2,76 Impairment of financial assets (Continued )

Asseis classified as cvailable for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of investments classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financal assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisiion cost and the eurrent fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income — is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ineome on investments classified as
available-for-sale finaneial assets are nol reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive ineome.

2.7.7 Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hterarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning
aof the reporting period.

2.8  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the eonsolidated balanes
sheets when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on o net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Group or
the counterparty.

2.9 Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair valee and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivahbles,

If the settlement of the receivables is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, If not, they are presented as non-current assets,

2.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inclodes eash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liguid investments with original matarities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown in eurrent liabilities in the consolidated stabement
of financial position.

2.11  Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction. net of tax, from the proceeds.

- e
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Payables

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Payables are elassified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to ilems
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balanee sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiary operate and generate
taxable income, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
whers appropriate on the basis of amounts expectad to be paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
lishilities and their carrving amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferrad tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deforred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Dieferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit or
taxable temporary differences will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax habilities are recognised in full in the consolidated statement of

cnrnprehensi\'e 1TLC0ITE.

Dieferved tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsel when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities
relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for provision of asset
mMaAnAgement services,

The Group recogmises revemze when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Income and expenses
Interast income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carryving amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest mte.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Expenses are recognised on an acerual basis,
Operating leases (as the lessee)
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ovwnership of assets remain with the lessor
are aecounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive ineome on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.
Employment benefits
(i} Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employvess and
a reliable estimate of the obligations can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12 months and measured at the
amounts expectad to be paid when they are settled.

(11} Pension obligations
The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme, the assets of which are
held in a separate trustee-administrated fund. The pension plans are funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.
The Group's contributions to the mandatory provident fund scheme are expensed as
incurred.  This plan is funded by payments from both employees and the Group. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(iii}  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they acerne to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of Teave.

L E
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with hmited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employment benefits {Continuwed)

{iv} Eeuity-settled share-based pavment seheme

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under
which the Group receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments
{opticns) of the Group, The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognized a= an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

ineluding any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s share price);
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions {for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaiming an
emploves of the entity over a specified time period k; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement
for employess to save),

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some crenmstances emplovees may provide services in advance of the
grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service commencement period and
grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revizes its estimates of the pumber of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to
eruity.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Growp's shareholders is recognised as a halality in the Growp's

financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Comparative figures

When necessary, comparative figures have been restated to conform to the current year's
presentation,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Financial risk management

The Group's aclivities expose it to a varety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, fair value and eash flow interest risk, and price risk), eredit and counterparty risk
and liguidity rsk. The Groups overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance. The Group may use derivative finaneial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures,

(a) Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instroment will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, whether those changes are eaused by factors specific to the individual
instrument or factors affecting all instruments in the market.

The Group has significant shareholding in the investment funds which are recognised as
subsidiaries (“Subsidiary Funds™} or financial assets al fair valoe through profit or loss or
available-for-sale financial assets (together “Investee Funds™) of the Group. As a result, apart from
exposing to the market price rigk of the direct investments of the Group, the Group is also exposed
to the market price risk of the investment portfolio of the Subsidiary Funds through its significant
holdings. The investment portfolios of the Subsidiary Funds inelude the equity seeurities which
are traded on the PRC stock exchanges, and USD and RMB denominated debt securities in
different geographical loeations,

At 31 December 2016 and 205, the Group’s market risk was affected by three main components:
changes in actual market prices, interest rate and foreign currency movements. Interest rate and
foreign currency movements are covered in Notes 3(h) and 3(e) below respectively, The Group's
market price risk is managed by seeking to moderate risk through selection of securities within
specified limits.

The table below summarises the Company's investment in the Subsidiary Funds as at vear end:

Investment in Subsidiary Funds by the Company 2016 2015

HE3 HE$

- Listed exchange traded fund 42,162,011 -

- Unlisted investment funds 279,450,800 137.380,476

Total 21,662,810 137,380,476
- 29 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with hmited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

(a1} Market price risk {Continued)

The table below summarises the Growp's direct investment in the Investee Funds and the indirect
investment in equities, exchange traded fund and debt securities via investment in the Subsidiary

Funds as at vear end.

Investment in Investee Funds 2006 2015
HK$ HKS
- Listed exchange traded fund . 21,062,146
- Unlisted investment funds 86,131,521 70,322,156
Total 6,131,521 02,284,302
Indirect investment through the Subsidiary Funds 2016 2015
HEs HE%
- Listed equity investments 140,646,604 192,304,880
- Listed exchange traded fund 5.032,146 .
- Debt securities 224,000,731 20,478,512
Total 375,081,540 221,783,401

Derivative finaneial instruments 2,570,753
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 463,787,815 314,067,703
Axailable-for-sale financial assets 20ouh 2015
HEs HE%
- Unlisted investment products 12,956,814 8355415

-0 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with hmited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Continued)
Market price risk {Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group invests in USD and BEMB denorminated
debt securities and RMB denominated equity securities through the investment in Subsidiary
Funds and the following table diseloses the geographic loeation exposure:

2016 2015

HE= % of NAY HES% % of NAY
China 212,978,191 41.15 192,304 880 32.34
Germany 42,410,031 819 3,101,777 0.52
Hong Kong 91,040,172 17-59 21,542,033 3.62
Treland 3,870,429 .75 . :
Metherlands 1,587.220 0.3 - .
Singapore 23,186,564 J48 4,333,802 .81
Total 375.081,541 F247 221,783,401 37.29

As at 31 December 2006 and 2015, the Group did net have any financial liabilities instrments.

As at 31 December 2016, the top three industrial sectors exposure for financial assets at fair valoe
through profit or loss of the Group are financial services, industrial and consumer (non-cyelical)
with a Fair value of HK$144,767,288, HEK$77,334.417 and HK$.43,976,700 respectively. The total
equity percentage of the corresponding top three industrial sectors are 27.97%, 14.94% and 8.50%
respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the top three industrial sectors exposure for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of the Group are consumer (non-eyelieal), industrial and financial services

with a fair value of HES70,539,132, HK$36,3760,011 and HE$26,140,871 respectively. The total
equity percentage of the corresponding top three industrial sectors are 11.86%, 6.a2% and 4.90%

respectivily,

-9 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEXNTS
Financial risk management (Continued)
Market price risk {Continued)

The Group's investments in the Subsidiary Funds and the Investee Funds are subject to their
respective terms and conditions and the offering decumentation and are suseeptible to market
price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of those Subsidiary Funds and the
Investee Funds. All of the Subsidiary Punds and the Investee Funds of the Group are managed by
portfolic managers who are compensated by the respective Subsidiary Funds and the Investee
Funds for their services. Such compensation generally consists of an asset based fee and a
performance based incentive fee and is reflected in the valuation of the Group's investment in
each of the Subsidiary Funds and the Investee Funds, The rght of the Group to request
redemption of its investments in Subsidiary Funds and the Investee Funds ranges in frequency
from daily to monthly.

The tahles below summarise the market price risk sensitivity of the Group through its investments
in the Subsidiary Funds and the [nvestee Funds recognized as at 31 December 2016 and 2o 5. The
analysis 15 based on the assumptions that the relevant prices of the securities in the relevant nsk
variables increased or decreased by the percentage disclosed in the table below with all the other
variables held constant.

As at 31 December 2016
Investment in the Subsidiary Funds by the Company

Impact to the
ronsofidated
slatesment of

Beasonahble mmprehensive
Fair value pusiiH.e shift in inenme
Subaldiary Funds HE$ Relevant rak variahles mie HES
CSOP Select US Dollar 172,4R8,500 Citi Asia Broad Bond +f-5% +[-5596,302
Bend Fund [l
CROP China Ultra Shoret- 4216201 Citl Chinese +- 10% # 1z og6,008
Teem Bond ETF Govemnment and Polley
Bark Bond o-1 Year
Salpet [ndex
CS0P China Intelligenes  goB21,700 Mot applicable (Mote] afe 1% +f-golzaye
A-Share Fund
CROP FoumtainCap New 1680580 Hot applicable (Hote) & 10% + B n50
Drmagon Dividend &
Growth Fund
REINL ] &2l 5160
- 32 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Keng with limited liability}

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a)  Market price risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016
Investment in the Invester Funds

Impact to the
ronsofidated
slatesnent of

Reagcnshle comprehensive
Fair value Relevant risk possible shift in income
Investes Funds HES variahles Tate HES
China Ssuthern Dragon. 417580 Motagplicable +i- 5% +f-20,879
Dynamiz Fund - China (Mote)
New Balanee
Opportunity Fund
China Ssuthern Dragen 70,327,038 Mot applicable +i-5% +/- 1.516,352
[rmiammic Fund - RMB (Mate)
High Yield Bend Fund
CR0P Simpleway China 15386003 Mot applicable +- 5% +f- 76035
Valee Elite Fund 5P (Note)
Bhamsa +/-4,306,57%
e e —
As at g1 December 2015
Investment in the Subsidiary Funds by the Company

Impact 1o the
consoidated
sintement of

Reasonahble comprehensive
Fair value Relevant risk passible shift in income
Subsidinry Funds HES varishies rate HES
CS0P Select US Dollar 2, B, 084 Citl Asia Broad +f- 5% +- Q0,64
Bond Fund Bond Index
CR0F China Intelligence 112,480 200 ot applizable +/-10% #/- 11,248,939
A-Share Fuad Note]
137, AH 0 TE +/ -2, 180,573
] L
- 33 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Keng with limited liability}

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a)  Market price risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015
Tovestment in the Invester Funds

Impact to the
ronsofidated
siaternent of

Ressonable comprehensive
Fair value Relevant risk possible ghift in ineome
Investes Funds HES wariahles rate HES
China Ssuthern Dragon. 1,885,658 Mot applicable +/- 59 + -0, 2H3
Dynamiz Fund - China (Mote)
New Balanee
Opportunity Fund
China Ssuthern Dragen 68,436,408 Mot applicable +f- 5% +/- q421 8235
[rmiammic Fund - RMB [Mote)
High Yield Bend Fund
CR0P China Ultra Short- 21,062,146 Citi Chinese 4 10% +-0.534
Term Bond ETF Government and
Policy Bank Bond o
1 Year Select Insdex
o2,284,302 +REESA42

Mote; The investments in CSOP China Intelligence A-Share Fund, CSOP FountmnCap New
Dragon Dividend & Growth Fund, China Southern Dragon Dyvnamic Fund - China New Balance
Opportunity Fund, China Southern Dragon Dynamic Fund - RME High Yield Bond Fund and
CSOP Simpleway China Value Elite Fund 5P are not directly correlated to any index. As such,
relevant risk variables are not considered as applicable.
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 Financial risk management {(Continued)
(a) Market price risk {( Continued)
The exposure to investments in Subsidiary Funds and Investee Funds at fair value by strategy

employed is disclosed in the following table. These investments are included in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2016
Subsidiary Funds
Mot asaet value Investment
Numberof of [ovestes Fund fairvalie % of net assets of the
Stratepy Investes Funds HES HES Group
Fined income 2 2 = 182 Milkion 214,658,500 AL4%
Equity Jong/short 1 142 Milkion oo Bra0 17.5%
Equity long only 1 2t Milkion 16,180,580 %1%
320,602, B0
Invester Funds
Net asset value Investment
Numberof of invester fund fairvalue % of net assets of the
Strategy iovestes funds HES HES Group
Fixed income 1 B3 Millien 737058 12.6%
Emquity long/short 1 137 Milfon 15.586,003 1.0%
Equity long oniy 1 1.2 76 Milfion 417580 a,1%
B, 130520
As at 31 December 2015
Subsidiary Funds
Net asset value Investment
MNumberof of Investee Fund fmrvalue % of net assels of the
Sirategy Invester Funds HES HES Group
Fived income 1 a5 Milkon g ol oHg 4.2%
Equity long/short 1 211 Million 112,580,362 18.0%
137380476
—_—

[nvester Funds recognised as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Nt asset value Investmamt
Numberof of investee fund fairvalie % of net amsets of the
Strategy irvesies funds HES HES Group
Fixed ineome 2 78 - 178 MilBon 40,708, g 15.2%
Equity lomg only 1 1554 Million 1865658 0.3%
ge.284,302
- 35 -
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 Financial risk management {(Continued)
{(a) Market price risk {Continued)

There were exposures to Company's direct investments representing over 5% of the Group’s net
assets at reporting date. The table below summarises those investments.

2016 2015
% of net % of net
assets of the assels of the
Name of the investments HES Group HES% Group
CSOP Select US Dellar Bond Fund 172, 488, 500 333 24,501,084 4.2
China Seuthern Dragon Dhvnamie
Furd - EMB High Yield Bond
Fund ("CHNEE") 70,327,038 136 68,456,498 ILE
CHOP Cluna Ultea Short-Term
Bond ETF 42,162,911 8.1 21,062,146 3.7
CSOF China Intelligence A-Share
Fund (formerly known as *CS0OP
Hermes China A-Share Fund”™) o0, 821,720 17.5 112 480,392 18.9

(b} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates,

The Group is exposed to risks associated with the effects of Muctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on its interest-bearing financial assets and eash flows.

At 31 December 2016, the Group invests in Subsidiary Funds and Investee Funds, and the interest
rate risk exposure was HEK$200.426,772 (2015 HK$08 3254150 If interest rates had been 25
basis points higher or lower with all other variables held constant, net assets attributable to owner
would have been impacted by HK$1,204,081 (2015 HK$568,017) higher or lower at 31 December
2016,

As at 31 December 2zoiwt and 31 December 2oi1s, the bank balances of the Group of
HE$275,945.473 (2015: HK§297,104,328) are placed at short term market interest rate and the
directors consider that the Group is not subject to significant amount of risk due to fluctuation in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates, The directors assessed that a 50 basiz points change
in interest pate would have HE$1,5977.227 (2005 HEK#$1.485 822) impact to the profit and loss of
the Group.
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CHOM ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management {(Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table detzils the Group's exposure to interest rate risk categorised by the earlier of
contractual reprising or maturity dates.

As at 31 December 2016

Maturity Maturity Maturity Mon-interest
uptoiyear i-5 years oVET § yeaTs. bearing Total
HES EES HES HES HES
Asseits
Financial assets at fair value
through profit orlos 121,030,080 167, 1, 2B 63,049,505 11,575,044 46, 78815
Avnilable-for-sale financal
ASE TS 13,050,814 - 12,056, B 1
rher ceceivables - 47 E12,709 47,812,307
Cash amd cash equivalents 275 445473 - 975445473
Total assets 409,541,367 167,123, 286 53,049,505 159,388,247 B, 00 405
Liahilities
Amount doe 1o immediate
holding eompany . = Z 1,709,593 1700893
Accrued liabilities and other
payables - - = 740003 T40604,00%
Dividend payahle - - - B 1B0,000 3, 160,000
Noan-controlling interests
derived from investinent
funds - - - b, 0,341 L L R |
Total liabilities - 263815237 eb3 015237
Total interest sensitivity
BAap 408.541,367 167,023,286 B3040,505

-97-
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CHOM ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management {(Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015

Maturity Maturity Maturity  Mon-interest
up o 1 year 1-5 years VBT § VEars bearing Tudtal
HES EES HES HES HES
Assrets
Finaneial ssests at fvir valoe
through profit or loss T4 254375 2455 628 B0, 02 236, 760, 655 4,067,703
Avilahle-for-sale financal
nsseis B,355.415 . - - 8355215
Ameunt due from immediate
holding company 3 - 2 1372 675 L7267
ke ceceivables - - - 2 B 60h g2 884 608
Receivable from sale of an
investrmmt : : 480,718 34,480,738
Dreposit with an inves roent
AT - 90,870,575 o0, BT T
Caxsh and cash equivalents bl R - 2o7a6g28
Tuotal assets 0TS 2,552, 608 BN, 2 425378344 Bod, 05,072
Linhilities
Accrued lisbilities and other
payables = = - 92,983,717 2,087,717
Non-controlling interests
derived from investment
funris g = . ok, 830,868 oF, B30, B6E
Total liahilities - . - 190,805,585 104, B14, 585
Total interest sensitivity
Eap iy Sop L 2,452 fad 600,042
Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and eounterparty risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty to a financial instrument
will cause the Group financial loss by failing to discharge its obligations. The Group seeks to
minimise this risk of loss by monitoring the selection of counterparties and by minimizing the
reliance placed on individeal eounterparties.

The Group maintains a list of approved brokers selected to manage the risk that a broker may fail
and lead to a loss on trade. All transactions in listed invest ments are settled on a delivery versus
payment basis using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of
securities sold is only made when the Group's custodian banks have received payment. For a
purchase, payvment is made once the securities have been received by the Group's custodian banks,
The trade will fail if either party fails to meet their obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management {(Continued)

Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to investments in debt securities as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, The
Manager will actively manage the portfolio of the Group. In case of credit rating downgrading, the
Manager will adjust the positions in the portfolio using its credit analysis and rating systems that

are designed to manage credit risks.

The table below summarises the credit mting of the investment [mrtfl:lliu imsned by eredit mting

agencies as at 31 December 2016 and 2m5:

Credil rating category of debt securities:

Credit rating ageney

Fiteh
Muoody
S&P

Credit rating agency

Moody
S&F
Unrated

Rating
B+ to BEB-¢

Bz to Baaz
AAA o OOC+

Hating

A4 to Baag
AAA to BB-

266/323

2010
HES % of net assets

42,117,572 8.6

11,478,654 2.22

175403505 3389

229,099,731 44.27
2015

HES % of net assets

19,054,737 2.20
8,871,227 1449
1,552,548 0,20

20,478,512 4.95
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 Financial risk management {(Continued)
(c) Credit and counterparty risk {(Continued)

The following tables summarise the assets placed with eounterparties as at 31 December 2016 and
2015 and their respective credit ratings

2016 2015
HK% HES
g

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China { Asia) 224,840,340 257,203,873
The HongHong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 343,102 193,129
China Merchants Bank Co, Lid. 7,111,828 14,916,721
China Construction Bank Corp. 1,249,006 395,559
Haitong International Seenrities Company Limited 506,631 .
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited 21,070,011 081,237
HSEC Institutional Trust Services (Treland) Limited 16,610,403 23,304,895
HSBC Bank {China) Company Limited 2,600,060 .

275341371 2597,085.514

eposits with amin
Eszence Asset Management { Hong Kong) Limited - 99,379,575

5 W
Anstralia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 2,574,753 .
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited 156,10k, 1002 23,600,695
Citthank Europe ple (Formerly known as Citihank
International ple { Luxembourg Branch)) 70,744,618 70,322 156
HSBC Institutional Trost Services { Asia) Limited 15,286,003 .
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Ireland) Limited 148,983,117 198,122, 766
Haitong International Securities Company Limited - 21,062,146
HSBC Bank (China} Company Limited 66,906,322 -
463,787,815 414,067,703
China Construction Bank Corp. 6,707,583 8.855.415
China Merchants Bank Co. Ltd, G.240,.291 -

12,056,814 8.355.415

- 40 -
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 Financial risk management {(Continued)
(c) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

2016 2015
HES HEs
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limmited 2,574,753 -
Bank of China (Hong Eong) Limited 180,472,113 24,641,972
China Construction Bank Corp. 7,050,580 8,750,974
China Merchants Bank 13,361,059 14,916,721
Citibank Europe ple { Formerly known as Citibank
International ple (Luxembourg Branch}) 70,744,618 70,322,156
Essenece Assel Management {Hong Kong) Limited - 99,879,575
Haitong International securities Company Limited 506,631 21,062,146
HSEC Institutional Trest Services (Asia) Limited 15,386,903 -
HEBC Institational Trast Serviees (Treland ) Limited 165,503,520 231,427,661
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China { Asia) 224,840,340 257,203,873
The HongHong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 343,102 193,129
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited 70,606,282 -
2016 2015
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited AA- A
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited Ak As
China Construction Bank Corp. A A
China Merchants Bank Co. Lid. EEE+ BEE+
Citibank Europe ple { Formerly known as Citibank
International ple (Luxembourg Branch)) Ak A
Essenece Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited Unrated Unrated
Haitong International Securities Company Limited Unirated Uneated *
HSRC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited Unrated=> Unrated*
HSRC Institutional Trust Services (Ireland ) Limited Unratad® Unrated=
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China ( Asia) A A
The HongKong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited Ad- Ad-
HSBC Bank {China} Company Limited Al AA-

The above credit rating are Standard & Poor's Iung-terlu issner eredit rating,

¢ Haitong International Securities Group Limited which is the immediate holding company of
Haitong International Seenrities Company Limited rated as BEB {2015: BRB).

# HSBC Holdings Ple which is the ultimate holding company of HSBC Institutional Trust Services
{Ireland} Lirmted rated as A (2015: A)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at vear end date 15 the carrying amount of the financial
assets as shown on the consolidated balance sheet.

w4l
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management {(Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk when it encounters difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. It manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficent cash and
cash equivalents,

The Group is exposed to daily redemptions of units in the Investee Funds, The Funds invest the
majority of its assets in securities that are traded in an achive market which can be readily
disposed of.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturty date as at 31 December
2016 and 2o15. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contrmaetual undiscounted cash flows.

Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant,

At 31 December 2006

Less than No maturity
6 months period Total
HES HES HES
Linbilities
Ammeunt due io mmediate helding
COMTPEIY 1,700,903 . 1,700,003
Accrued linbilities and other pavables 74,964,003 - T4.004,0073
Drividend payable 043, 160,000 - 00,160, 000
Non-controlling interests derived from
investmmnt funds . 6,080,241 06,080,341
Total linhilities Vi, B, BO6 06,080,341 263, 815,237
Taotal assets B, 02, 405 - B e, 4005
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CHOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITELD
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Financial risk management {(Continued)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

At g1 December 2015

Less than HNo maturity
6 months period Total
HES HES HES
Liahilities
Accroed liabilities and other payables
2O L06 Bgo,Bu 92, 9877
Nm—nm'l.'h:d”ng'in'.ﬂuh Aerved from
investmemt funds - ol 830868 ol B0.868
Total Liabilites GG, D06 0, TRLETT 150,81, 585
Total assets To0,840,717 > T, Ea0,77

(e}  Foreignexchange risk

The functional currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars ("HE dollars™). The Group is therefore
exposed to foreign exchange risk, as the value of the assets denominated in other carrencies will
fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates.

The Group's transactions, assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in United States dollars
(“I'S dollars™, HE dollars, Renminki (“EMB™) and Furo (“EUR”). Assets and liabilities
dencminated in US dollars is not considered as subjeet to foreign exchange risk as it is currently
pegged to the HK dollars within a narrow range.

The table below summarises the Group's monetary and non-monetary exposure to currency risks,
excluding forward foreign exchange contraets and the impaet on net assels should the currencies
have strengthened or weakened by 5% against the Hong Kong dollars, with all other variables
remaining constant, as at 31 December 2016 and zo15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

(m) Foreign exchange risk (Continued )
At 31 December 2016

Original currencies

Assets
Monetary assets
Non-monetary assets

Liabilities
Monetary linbilities
Won-monetary linbilitios

Net exposure

Impact on net assets attributable to owner

Estimited basis peoint change in the relevant
exchange rate of the foreign currency against
Hong Kong dollars

Monetary
Non-monetary

At 31 December zo1s

Original currencies

Assels
Monetary assets
Non-monetary assets

Liabilities
Monetary liahilities
Non-monetary liahilities

MNet exposure

Impact on net assets attributable to owner

Estimated basis point change in the relevant
exchange rate of the foreign currency against
Hong Kong dollars

Monetary
Non-monetary

271/323

RMEB
HK$

140,455,498
217,043,551

(4,375,760}
(81,016,086}

27,206,333

20 basis points

272,159
270,253

RME
HEs

gga28,572
224,365,959

(4,654,051}
(58,830,808}

220,004,632

20 basis points

188,949
251,070

EUR
HE#

32500
9,677.585

S TI0TH

20 basis points

b5
184,355

EUR
HEs

2,205,997
16,951.465

{334,385)

18,885,077

20 basis points

3.863
33907



()

EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CS0P ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management {(Continued)
Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as
a geing concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return eapital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company is licensed to carry out regulated activities of type 1 dealing
in securities {"Type 17), bype 4 advising on securities ("Type 47) and type g asset management
{“Type 97} under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance {2o15: Type 1, Type 4 and Type
g} As a result, the Company is subject to eapital requirements on the paid-up eapital and liguid
capital and files financial returns with the Securities and Futures Commission on a monthly basis.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets traded in active markets {such as publicly traded denvatives and
trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date.
The Group utilises the last traded market price for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liahility take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis,

HEFRS 13 requires the Group to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflacts the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

. Quoted prices (unadjnsted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
hability, either directly {that 15, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices} (level
2}

* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unchservable imputs) (level ).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the
fair value measurement in its entivety. If a fair value messurement uses observable inputs that
requite significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is o level 3
measurement. Assessing the significinee of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its
entirely requires judgment, considering factors speeific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Greup.
The Group considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, vegularly

distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

.45.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with hmited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Group's financial assets and
liabilities (by class} measured at fair value at vear end date:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 9 Total
HE$ HK$ HKS HKS$
At 31 December 2016
Assels
Financial assets at fair valoe
through profit or loess:
Listed equity investment 140,949,664 - - 140,945,604
Exchange traded fund 5.032,146 . . 5,032,146
Unlisted investment funds z 86131521 s 86,131,521
Debt secunties - 220,000,731 - 220.000.73
Forward foreign exchange
contracts B 2574753 ' 2,574,753
Available -for-sale financial
assets:
Unlisted investment funds - 12,056,514 - 12,056,814
Total 145.081, 810 330,762 819 - 476,744,600
Lewel 1 Liwel 2 Level 2 Tatal
HES HES HEs HKS
At 31 December zois
Assels
Financial azzets at fair vahie
through profit or loss:
Listed equity investment 174,500,501 - 17.793,208 192,304,580
Exchange-traded funds 21,062,146 . . 21,062,146
Unhisted investment funds - 0,322,156 - T0,322.150
Debt securities - 20,478,512 - 29,478,512
Available-for-zale financial
assels:
Unlisted investment funds z 8,355.415 - 8.355.415
Total 196,523,737 108,156,083 17,743,208 322429118
_—— —————— 3

Investments which values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore
classified within level 1, include an exchange traded fund. The Group does not adjust the quoted
price for these instroments.

Financial instruments that traded in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued

based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs such as equities and foreign currency contracts are classified within level 2.

- 46 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair value estimation (Continued)

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently,

Asat g December 2016, there is no level 3 investment held by the Group {2o15: HK$17,743,208).
Transfers between levels of the fair value hiermarchy

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have oecurred at the beginning
of the reporting period.

The investmens classified as level 3 relates o seeurities which were suspended as at 31 Decembier
2015. During 31 December 2006, The following table presents the details of the level 3
investments as at 31 December 2015,

Fair value Valuation Wof NAV of
Drescription Reazon of suspension HES technigques the Group
Listed equity investments

Consumer, Non- Lack of active trading 2419067 Las=t traded Ou1%
eyelical, China market price

Technolegy, China Restriction of shares 3,754,004 Los=t traded 0.65%
disposal price

Communiabions, Restochen of shares 6,517,204 Last traded 1.10%
China disposal prce

Utilities, China Restriction of shares 2345532 Last traded o.39%
clispsesal prace

Industrial, China Restriction of shares 2,705,651 Last traded 0.45%
disposal prce

17,745,298 2.98%

The following table includes a roll forward of the amounts for the financial year ended 31
Drecember 2016 and 31 December 2015 for financal instruments classified within level 3:

2010 015

HEKs HES
Opening balance 17,743,208 23.582.030
Purchases 161,452 -
Sales (15.569,907) -
Transfer in . 15,642,797
Transfer out {21,160,000)
Realised loss (987.143) .
Net unrealised gain (1,580,9095) 67,685
Exchange {loss)/gain {366,705} {1,288 305)
Closing balance - 17, 743298
Total net unrealised gain for investments held at
financial vear end (1,580,005} 1,640,352

.4?.
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Directors make estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting
estimates may not equal the actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of eansing a material adjustment to the earrving amounts of assels and liabilities are outlined
below:

L it Biidis fund

The Group's investments in investment funds are stated with reference to the net asset value
provided by the respective administrators of the investment funds as determined by the Directors,
If the net asset value of the investment funds iz not available or the Directors consider that such
net asset value is not reflective of fair value, the Directors may exercise their judgement and
discretion to determine the fair value of the investment funds., The Directors consider that the
above valuation approach is the best estimate of fair value of the investment funds.

Inve nts in derivative financial instru t

The Group may, from time to time, hold financial instruments that are not gquoted in active
markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. The Group will receive the prices directly from the
exemting hrokers for OTC securities on fair values of such instruments, During the vear ended 31
December 2016, the Group had held OTC derivatives in the form of foreign currency forward
contracts which are quoted in active markets.

In cases where the financial instrument is quoted in more than one stock exchange, the last traded
price from the stock exchange which the security is traded on is taken.

Financial instruments by category

Apart from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and available-for-sale financial
assets as disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet which are classified as held-for-trading, all
other financial assets as disclosad in the consolidated balance sheet, including amount due from
immediate holding company, other receivables, receivable from sale of an investment, deposit
with an investment manager and cash and cash equivalents, are categorised as “loans and
receivables”,

Apart from financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in the consolidated
balance sheet which are classified as held-for-trading, all other financial liabilities as disclosed in
the consolidated balance sheet, including amount due to immediate holding company, accerued
liabilities and other payables, and amount due to third party investors are categorised as “other
financial liabilities™.

- 48 -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Current and deferred taxation
Tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided st the rate of 16,5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year,

2016 2015
HES HES
Hong Kong profits tax - Current tax 20,608,657 37.077,086
Dieferred tax relating to the origination and reversal of
temporary differences (Note 6{b}) (1,506,529 {1.548,28q)
'ﬂ‘ﬁl‘.hlmll:lin,g 1ax on interest income Gz, 707 .
Tax expenses 19,164,835 35:.529,607

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise nsing
the tax rate of the home country of the Company as follows:

2016 2015
HE# HES
Profit before tax 104,346,644 202,049,642
Tax calculated at local rate of 16.5% (20151 16.5%) 17,217,106 93,3358 101
Income not subject to tax {915,399) {811,634}
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,492,040 5,891,206
Deferred tax relating to the origination and reversal of
temporary differences (1,506,529) (1,548,289}
Withholding tax on interest income bz 707 -
Others 2813870 (839.777)
Taxation charge 19,164,835 35,520,607
- 44; -
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[ Current and deferred taxation { Continued)

(h)  Deferred taxation

201 2015
HES HES
Deferred tax assets 1,537,643 21,114

The movement of the Group’s deferred tax assets during the vear is as follows:

Accelorated
tax
depreciation
HES

Al 1 January 2015 (1,517,175)
Charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1,548,28q
At 31 December zo15 and 1 January 2016 31,114
Charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income {Note(a)) 1.506,520

At 31 December 2016 1,537,643

i Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company to the extent of HK$104, 807,120 {2015: HK$161,4 30,384,

- Bl -
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Property. plant and equipment
Lenseliohl
Fumiture CHtice Tmproves
and fstures equipment ments  Motor vehicle Total
HES HES HES HES HES#
Year ended 31
December zo16
Opening net book amount 328,044 2,070,221 2971551 515867 GA86583
Currency translation
differences . {z.391) 1784 7860 7.253
Additions ® 1380,053 972240 G23.458 3.276,531
Drepreciation {111.542) {noremer)  (L7o7.oo0d6) (3098300  {3208.374)
Closing met book amount 2174003 2,768,460 2,238,569 L137.355 5,901,793
At 31 December 2016
Cost 705,118 5,500,319 8,265,739 LG7R.385 16200561
Accumulated depreciation {487.715) (31008530  (6o27,170) (54r050])  (10247,768)
Net beok amount 2174073 2 468,466 2,938 560 1137355 5561705
Year ended 31
December zo15
Cpening net book amount 306,500 1465631 1428484 650,707 F.050,218
Currency translation
differences - 17h 253 - 429
Additions 42180 L223.811 792568 . 4,058,570
Depreciation (110,036) (610.307)  (L249.574) (143.436)  (2122.443)
Closing net book amount $28.944 2,070,221 2971550 515,867 5,886,587
At 31 December 2015
Cost TO5,116 4,188,030 7. 300450 TH4.927 12057505
Accurmulated depreciation (am6a74)  (27.809) (45378700 (23g9.060)  (7.070.022)
Net book amount 238 044 200,321 207 5581 818 867 5,886,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Irurestrment in subsidiories

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:

DHF & o, Lid

Tvestment
Internstional
Limited

Shenzhe
Cfachsi CSOF
Assat
Bhimsgemment
Limited

CHOP Sl US
Daller Bomd

Hong Fang

CRO China
Lbten Shom=Term
Eond ETF

Homg, Kong *

C30F China
Intellipence As
Share Fund

Iroland

RO
FooniainCap
Mew [ragon
Dividemd &
Girpwih Fend
formerdy lnown
2 “(B0F Chima
Strategy Foed)

Iredand 4

Erincigel satvitle

Too prond die subeEcence for e of
tradieassk

To prondde imestment managemest
HTVECES

To pronddie ssset o agement and
investment cormcltancy services

Frveated in ik Greater China Region
o ackiiveloog term and sable

Invested inthe PRC Government and
Policy Berk Bonds induded nthe
Indiex throagh the ROF investment
deota prased o the Mazager by ke
SAFE

trvested in Chine A-Shares Fsted on
ks PR Stocd Exchampes through the
Ivistraent Mansger's ROFI goota
to mchieve medium o loag-term
explead apprecistion

Imvesied in stocks of compamies with
stromp earnings that consistently pay
dividends, and compantes whe @an
bemifit from Chira's eoomomic
eransformation and growih 1o
achieve both i ncome and loag-term
cagrital refusn

Batiogder ol issgal
shuresbeld

t fsaned share with per valee of
HES1

parvaboe of CNY

5,100,000 tssnied shased with par
vaboe of LY

#,400,000 oot of 8,500,000
naned redeemalde pasticipaticg.
units with no por vahee

251,000 oat of £ 35,000 Twoed
redermable pardopating enles
with e parvaboe

&60,000 oot of 12,000 ismed
rediemable participating enlt
with siopar vabos

10,000 not of 38,000 tssped

redeemiahle partidpating emits
with no par vabos

b

fa.ma%

74938

51%

(80P China Ultea Short-Term Bond ETF was an associate of the Group prior to 13 January 2016
and it became a subsidiary of the Group with effect from 11 January 2016,

4 CS0P FountainCap New Dragon Dividend & Growth Fund (formerly known as “CSOP China
Strategy Fund”} became a subsidiary of the Group with effect from the date of purchase, 20 April

201h,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment in subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

Inrestments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2015:

Hame

DHF & Co, Lid,

CHOP Investsmen
International
Limited

Stenabies Cachal
LHOP Assit
Manapgemeent
Limileed

CHOF &dect U8
Dodlsr Bopd
Fond (formerty
kmown s " CEOF
Enhmmeed Hong
Koo Bond
Fand)

C30F China
Intelligence A-
Share Fund
{formerly known
as"CEOP
Hermees Chima A
Bhare Fund®)

Hageof
incorreamtion

British ¥irgin
Ilanch

fibwrzahim

Hosg Kong ®

Irelnnd *

Erincioal saivittes

Dosenamk

T pirend dee Evintment management
Looar- ]

Topronidis asset massgesent and
Imvet=ient consuhancy seevies

Invested In the Grexter Chinn Rrgion
o achieve long term snd sablle
‘meome mnd aapital grovwth

hnvestied in Chine A-Shares Fsted on
the PRC Stock Exchanges throngh
the Investment Mmager's ROFE
quotn toadchieve meediem toloog-
term capital appreciation

Exmiogbers ofissned
shures bedd

1 Bseed share with par vabue of
HES1

20,000,000 isvued thases with
s valee of CHYL

5,100,000 tsend shared with
pas value of (30

1,700,000 oot of 4,700,000
Laped redeemable
jparti cipating units with no par
wilee

e 600 out of 882,600 issued
medeemabl e participating units
with no par vahue

i

. 6%

5%

5 CSOP Select US Dollar Bond Fund (formerly known as “CSOP Enhanced Hong Kong Bond
Fund") became a subsidiary of the Group with effect from 28 November 2014,

& C80P China Intelligence A-Share Fund {formerly known as “CSOP Hermes China A Share Fund”)
was an asgociate of the Group prior to 30 September 2005 and it beeame a subsidiary of the
Group with effect from 30 September 2015,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Keng with limited liability}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 Inwvestment in subsidiaries and associates (Continued)
b Investiment in associales

The associates of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2o16 and in 2ms5, which the
Directors consider they an: material to the Company, are as follows:

Flace of
Ruri s
coumntry of i of cwmerahip Matoreod  Mlesuoremess
Mume of entity ncorperstion oot relathonabip et Fair valee
Soeh 5 a1 oS
L] % HES HES
Chimn Secthers Dragon
Dyramiz Fond « Chine
Mew Belence
Oppormzity Fund Lipeembourg o.o3 0.1 Asscciste Frir value 417,580 188 6ol
Chima Socthers Dmgon
Dyraméc Fond - RMB
High ¥ied Bord Fond Liemmbaurg S1g2  afag Associate Fairwnhese 70327038 62496408
CSOP China Ut ok Mot
Short-Term Bond ETF Hoog Kong spplicable 2787 Associste 3 Fairwahee  applicable 2900140
CROP Smpl ewary (hina
Value Efite Fund S Caymmn 1117 . Mssocinbe Fairvalee 1586003 -

1 CB0P China Ultra Short-Term Bond ETF was an associate of the Group prior to 11 January 2016
and it became a subsidiary of the Company with effect from 11 Jannary 206, Please refer to
Mote gia) for details.

The tables below provide summarised unauvdited financial information for those associates that
are material to the Group. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the
unaudited financial statements of the relevant associates, and not the Group's share of those
amounts, The unaudited financial statements of China Southern Dragon Dynamic Fund - China
Mew Balanee Opportunity Fund and RMB High Yield Bond Fond are prepared in accordance with
Luxembourg generally secepted accounting principles ("Luxembourg GAAPT) relative to
undertakings for collective investments; the unaudited financial statements of CSOP China Ultra
Short-Term Bond ETF is prepared in accordance with HEFRS: and the unaudited finaneial
statements of CSOP Simpleway China Value Elite Fund SP is prepared in accordance with
International Finaneial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"),
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Keng with limited liability}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 Investments in subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

() Investments in associabes (Continwed)

CS0P China CHOP
Chives Southern Dwmgon China Sputhern Dreagon Ultra Short- Simpleway
Dynamic Fung - China New [ynamic Pund - RMEB Term Beond China Value
Balance Opportunity Fund High Yield Bond Pund ETF2 Elite Pund 3P 7
2016 2015 20h 2005 2015 fen U]
HES HE% HES HES HES HES
Summarised balance shest
Current asaets L2871, 713 1,584.696,006 84275842 180410000 77557883 145,165,707
Current liakilities 20,018,350 60 L TG AT7.5260 1,704,657 =0 337 4,555,048
Somimarised staternent of
comprehensive income
HNet increase
Jidecrease] in net
assets for the year A4ar2 Gr4POTRE nSonGay (22114087 25.960.785 11,401,703

+C830P China Ultra Short-Tenn Bond ETF was changed from an associate to a subsidiary of the
Group with effect from 11 January zon6,

7 CS0P Simpleway China Value Elite Fund beeame an associate of the Group with effect from the
date of purehase, 1 November 2016.

During the vears ended g1 December 2016 and 205, the Growp did not receive any dividends
from its associates.

10 Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group invests in China Construction Bank Investment Products and China Merchant Bank
Investment Product (2015: China Construction Bank Investment Product) which seek to achisve
its investment ul:je,:l'ive by investing in debt instruments and money market instruments. The fair
value of the investment amounted to HK$12,056,814 (2015: HK$8,355.415) a5 at 31 December
2o16, During the vear ended 31 December 2oa6, the realized gain of HES301,009 (2015 : MNil}
ineurred from the redemption of investment in China Construetion Bank Investment Produet, and
was recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

The Group fully disposed its interest in EJF Greater China Fund, Ltd. ("EJF Fund”} as at 31
December 2015, the realised loss of HE#$1,825.317 and the cumulative unrealised gain of
HE$9,6047,000 were recycled from the other comprehensive income to the profit and loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other receivables
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The carrying amounts of other receivables, which approximate to their fair values, are as follows:

2015
HES

5,280,187
28,677,204
1,138,474
6,qq6,012

366,925
10,466,806

2016

HE%

Rental deposits 5,006,648
Management fee and performance fee receivable oG, 370,018
Prepayments 1,630,114
Amount due from broker 27280
Dividiend receivalle 15,900
Interest receivable 4,042,543
Other accounts receivable 7.418,000
47,812,303

52,884,608

Derivative financial imstroments

The Group invests in forward contracts as at 31 December 2016, Forward contracts are contractual
ohligations to buy or sell financial instruments on a future date at a specified price established

over the counter.

Outstanding foreign currency forwards contracts as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

At 21 December 2016
Settlement date Contract to deliver In exchange for
Uss CNY
26 Jan 2017 2,941,605 20,000,000
28 Feb 27 2,935,133 20,000,000
31 Mar 2017 2,028,686 20,000,000
Share capital
Mumber of

Issued and fully paid shares
As at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015,

1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 253,333.333

Fair value
HE$§
TE%453
880,706
934,50

2,574,753

Share capital
HE3

284 266,666

Dividend

On 11 April 2m6, the Company declared final dividend distribution in an aggregate amount of
HE$1,000,000 to the shareholders of the Company., The dividend distribution of
HE#70,840,000 had been paid to the shareholders on 21 April 206 and 20 May 2oi6,
respectively. The outstanding dividend distribution of HK$90,160,000 is recorded as dividend

payable as at 31 December 2016,
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dividend {Continued)

Om 2g April 2015, the Company declared final dividend distribution in an aggregate amount of
HE$188 650,000 to the shareholders of the Company. Such amount has been paid to the
shareholders on 21 May 2015 and 4 Angust 2015, respectively.

Cash generated from/{used in) operations

Reconcihiation of profit before tax to net cash generated fromy/(used in) operating activities:

2016 25
HE=% HES
Profit before tax 104,346,044 202,019, 092
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation (Mote 8) 9.208,374 2,122,443
- Interest incomse {8,578,683) (2,646,310}
- Dividend income (1,388,325) (336,927
- Currency translation difference {1,352,260) {1.390,527)
- {Increase)/decrease in available-for-sale financial assets (4,601,399} 18252181
- {Increase)/decrease 1n financial assets at fair value to
profit and loss (149,720,112} 21,789,204
- Decrease in investments held-for-sale - 61,727,015
- Decrease/(increase) in amount due from immediate
holding company 1,372,675 {1,372,675)
- Decrease in ot her receivables 5,072,305 18,632,956
- Deerensef{increase) in receivable from sale of an
investment 34,480,738 {34,480,738)
- Decrease/(inerease) in deposit with an investment
manager 99,879,575 (99.879.575)
- Inerease/(decrease) in amount due to immediate holding
COMPELLY 1,706,003 {22.240,583)
- Decrease in acerued liabilities and other payables (17,815,503} {6,520,855)
- {Decrease)/inerease in amount due to third party
Investors {1,850,527) of. 830,868
Cash generated from operating activities 64,760,186 254,536,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue

Management fee income (Mote 21(b)}
Performance fee income (Mote 21(a))
Advizory fee income

2016 2015

HEs% HES
274,767,050 356,854,500
6,056,432 124,237,386
16,263,073 5622417
207,086,555 486,714,303

Net (losses)/gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

lnss

Change in unrealised gains in value of investments
Met realized (losses)/gain on sale of investment

Operating expenses

Employes benefit expenses (inclading directors’
emoluments)

Selling expenses & brokerage commission
Operating lease rental

Legal and professional fees

Fund operating expense

Advertising fees

Entertainment expense

Travelling expense

Depreciation (Note 8)

Anditor’s remuneration

Insurance expenses

Management fee

Trustee fos

Transaction costs

rectors” fees

Other operating expenses

285/323

2016 2015
HEs HES
4,378,316 1033, 728
(15.499,539) 14,590,754
(11,121,223) 25.524,482
_——
2016 2015
HES HES
05,004,119 100,013,702
22,070,267 134,207,226
17,019,035 14,050,615
2,780,831 7549070
13,624,855 8,474,450
Ti3ab a7 734075
8,246,537 4,651,742
3974.77 5400254
3,208,374 2122449
Q40,735 600,108
1,072,489 2,156,572
525,088 .
1,015,252 408, 6oz
1,069,778 =
106,773 449,212
15,295,876 10,115,653
189,250,717 298,702,844
_——
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2015
HES

18,071,583
23,584,534

Commitments
The Group leases office, staff quarter and director’s quarter under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements,
The future aggregate mintmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

2016

HES
Mot later than one year 17,104,286
Later than one vear but not later than five vears 7,752,137

24,856,423

41,656,117

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ahility, directly or indirectly,
to control the party or exercise significant infloence over the party in making financial and
operation decisions, or vice versi, or where the Group and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities,

The tahle below summarises the transactions with related parties of the Group:

Note 2016
HE=s
Mrectors” emolument 23 a7.020,688
Related party transachions during the yvear:
- Advisory fes i noome {a) 5,480,554
- Management fee and performance fee income by 272,200,644
Related party transactions as at vear end:
- Amount due from immediate holding
COmpany (e} =
- Amount due to immediate holding company ch 1,700,003

2015
HES

22 577,621

2,608,849
479,290,663

1,372,675
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Related party transactions (Continued )

{a) Advisory fee income
The amount represents advisory fee income recenved from China Southern Fund
Management Co. Lid., the immediate holding company of the Group, for the provision of
the advisory service,

ik Management fiee and performance fee income

The Group received the management fee and performance fee income in the aapacity of a
fund manager.

{e) Amount due from/to immediate holding company
The amount due from immediate holding company represents the advisory fee income
receivable from the immediate holding company, which is unsecured, interest-free and
have no fived repayment terms. The amount due to immediste holding company

represents the consultancy fee expense payable to the immediate holding eompany.

The amounts due from and due to immediate holding company are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed repavment terms.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of HE$275,.445.473 (2005: HE$297,164,328) represent cash in hand
and deposits held with banks as at 91 December 206,

The Group maintains trust accounts with authorised institutions as a result of its normal business
transactions. At 31 December 20106, trust amounts not otherwise dealt with in these financial
statements amounted to HE$2, 974,732 (2015: HES113,871,757).

Events after the reporting period

On 3 January 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Famous Dragon Capital

Limited for a cash consideration of HEK$8, which became a whollv-ovwned subsidiary of the Group,
Famous Dragon Capital Limited is sequired for launching a licensed product.,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance sheet and reserve movement of the Company

Balanee sheet of the Company

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments in subsidiaries — available-for-sale
Amounts due from immediate holding company
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Other receivables

Recoivable from sale of an investment

[eposit with an investment manager

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to the Company’s equity
shareholders

Share capital

Other reserves {Note a)

Retained earmings (Mote a)

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Amount due to immediste holding eompany
Accrued liabilities and other payables
Dividend payable

Total equity and liabilities

The balance sheet of the Company were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 April 2007 and

was sigied on its behalf:

[Ming Chen

= ] =
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2016 2015

HK# HE%
4,084,033 378,703
25,340,616 25,346,616
1,537,643 31114
30,968,297 30,756,433
48,706,279 o2 284 302
21,662,810 137,380,476
- 1,372,675

893,927 925,795
41,206,711 53,087,447

- 34,480,738

- 94,879,575
225,733,976 257,502,405
678,203,608 676,973,413
TOD,171.995 Fo7,720,846
284,266,666 284,200,666
(5.757.369) 12,648,606
241,684.575 297877455
520,193 872 505,002,727
25,934,712 27,596,066
1,700,003 .
71,173,418 85,041,053
Go,160,000 -
188,978,123 112,637,119
TOG,171,0905 707,729,846

Zhang Gacho
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balanee sheet and reserve movement of the Company (Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

At 1. January 2015

Profit for the vear

Dividends distribution

Change in fair value of available-for-sale finaneial assets
Change in fair value of investments in subsidiaries -
available-for-sale

Wet realised losses in fair value of available-for-sale
financial asset

Net realised losses in fair value of investments in
subsidiaries - available-for-sale

Net realised losses in fair value of available-for-sale
finaneial assets reclassified to profit or loss

Net realized losses in fair value of investments in
subsidiaries — available-for-sale reclassified to profit or
[oss

At 31 December 2015

Al 1 January 2016

Profit for the year

Dividends distribution

Change in fair value of investments in subsidiaries
available-for-sale

Net realized gains in fair value of investment in
subsidiaries — available-for-sale

Net realized gains in fair value of investment in
subsidiaries - available-for-sale reclassified to profit or
lose

At 31 December 2016

289/323

Retained  (Other reserves
EAMINEs
HEs HES
325,097,071 12, 722.3%
161,430,989 <
{188, 650,000) Z
= (9,647,900}
g874,112
(1,825.317)
{4,260,262)
1825317
4,205,262
297,877,455 12,048,606
297877455 12,548,606
104,807,120 -
{161,000,0040) :
{18,705,975)
aza1b
{27,016}
241,684,575 {5,757.369)
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CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Benefits and interests of directors

Benefits and interests of directors disclosures required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors} Regulation (Cap. G220) are as follows:

{a) Directors’ emoluments

2016 2015
HE3% HES
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of directors’
services as directors of the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings:
Remuneration 8,508,371 8,585,040
Diseretionary bonuses 17,921,317 12,800,000
Other benefits - quarter H00, 000 1,102,581
27029688 22 577621

{b} Directors’ retirement benefits
Mo retirement benefits and other retirement benefits were paid by the Company to the
director during the vears ended 31 December 2006 and 2015 in respect of the services as a
director of the Company and its subsidiaries and other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company orits subsidiary undertaking respectively.

{c} Directors’ termination benefits
No termination benefits were paid by the Company to the director as compensation for the
early termination of the appointment by the Company, subsidiaries of the Company and the
controlling sharcholder China Southern Fund Management Co. Ltd., the immediste holding
company of the Company for the vears ended 31 December 2016 and 2m5.

{d) Consideration provided to thied parties for making available directors’ services

Mo considerations were provided by the Company to third parties for making available
directors’ services during the vears ended 91 December 2016 and 2015,

{e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts
Mo significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company was 2 party and in which the directors of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time durng
the vears ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,

Approval of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 April zo17.

'6‘3'
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( ) (HSBC Ingtitutional Trust Services (Asia)

Limited)

()
()

()

(2012 12 18 ) 50,000,000 (715,000,000 )
29

HSBC

(China Southern Asset Management Co. Limited)
(2012 12 18 ) 150,000,000 (2,419,500,000 )

(Oriental Patron AsiaLimited)
(2012 25 ) 12,000,000 (171,600,000 )

(The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited)
(2012 12 18 ) 58,968,707,252.5 (843,252,513,711 ) 10,233,500,000

(1,138,886,215,000 )

()

HSBC

()
()

HSBC

( ) (HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited)
(2012 12 18 ) 12,400,000,000 (200,012,000,000 )

ABN AMRO (ABN AMRO Clearing Hong Kong Limited)

(Barclays Bank PLC) BNP (BNP Paribas Securities

Services) (BOCI Securities Limited) ( ) (China Galaxy
International Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited) (China International Capital
Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited) ( ) (China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited)

(CIMB Securities Limited) ( ) (CITIC Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited)
(Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited)
( ) (Credit Suisse Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
(Deutsche Securities Asia Limited) ( ) (Essence International

Securities (Hong Kong) Limited) ( ) (Goldman Sachs
(Asia) Securities Limited) ( ) (Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)

(Haitong International Securities Company Limited) ( )
(JP. Morgan Broking (Hong Kong) Limited) ( ) (KGI Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
(Macquarie Bank Limited) (Merrill

Lynch Far East Limited) (Morgan Stanley Hong
Kong Securities Limited) ( ) (Nomura International (Hong Kong)
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Limited) (Oriental Patron Securities Limited) ( ) (SG Securities (HK)
Limited) (The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited) UBS
(UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited) ( ) (Yuanta Securities (Hong

Kong) Company Limited)

*

ABN AMRO (2012 19 )
(ABN AMRO Clearing Hong 269,300,000
Kong Limited) (3,850,990,000 )
(Barclays Bank PLC)
BNP (2015 12 31 )
(BNP Paribas Securities 178,000,000
Services) (21,511,300,000 )
(BOCI (2015 12 31 )
Securities Limited) 2,000,000,000
(28,600,000,000 )
( )
(China Galaxy International
Securities (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited)
(China (2015 12 31 )
International Capital Corporation 843,220,000
Hong Kong Securities Limited) (12,058,046,000 )
( ) (China (2012 30 )
Merchants Securities (HK) Co., 2,000,000,000
Limited) (28,600,000,000 )
(CIMB Securities
Limited)
( ) (CITIC (2012 25 )
Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited) 250,000,000
(3,575,000,000 )
(2012 29 )
301,951,240
(Citigroup Global Markets Asia (4,317,902,732 )
Limited)
(2012 12 )
( ) (Credit Suisse 530,902,000
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited) (7,591,898,600 )
(2012 )
(Deutsche Securities 1,264,089,200
Asia Limited) (18,076,475,560 )
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( ) (Essence
International  Securities  (Hong
Kong) Limited)

(2015 12 31
1,000,000,000
(14,300,000, 000

( )
(Goldman

Sachs (Asia) Securities Limited)

(2011 12 24
31,094,981
(3,460,560,435

( ) (Guotai
Junan  Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited)

(2015 12 31
4,700,000,000
(67,210,000,000

(Haitong
International Securities Company
Limited)

(2012
1,500,000, 000
(21,450,000, 000

( ) (J.P. Morgan
Broking (Hong Kong) Limited)

(2012
1,153,365,600
(16,493,128,080

( ) (KGI
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)

(Macquarie Bank Limited)

(2015 31
163,000,000
(13,568,120,000

(Merrill Lynch Far East
Limited)

(2011 12 19
17,000,000
(243,100,000

(Morgan
Stanley Hong Kong Securities
Limited)

( (2012 23

) (Nomura International 2.00
(Hong Kong) Limited) (29

3,200,000,000
(Oriental (2012

Patron Securities Limited) 20,000,000

(286,000,000
( ) (S6

Securities (HK) Limited)

(The
Hongkong and Shanghai  Banking
Corporation Limited)

(2012 12 18
58,968,707,252.5
(843,252,513,711
10,233,500, 000
(1,138,886,215,000

UBS
(UBS Securities Hong Kong
Limited)

(2012 10 31
430,000,000
(6,149,000, 000
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( ) (Yuanta
Securities (Hong Kong) Company

(2015 12 31 )
9,151,651,000

Limited) (33,769,592,190 )
HK (Bluefin HK Limited) ( ) (China Merchants Securities (HK) Co.,
Limited) ( ) (CITIC Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited)

(Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited)

(Commerz Securities Hong Kong Limited)

Suisse Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)

( ) (Credit
(Deutsche Securities Asia

Limited) (Haitong International Securities Company Limited) IMC

(IMC Asia Pecific Limited)
Kong Limited) UBS

(Optiver Trading Hong
(UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited)

HK (Bluefin HK Limited) BNP ( ) (BNP Paribas
Securities (Asia) Limited) (Commerz Securities Hong Kong
Limited) ) (Credit Suisse Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
(Deutsche Securities Asia Limited) (
) (Eclipse Options (HK) Limited) ( ) (Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited) (Haitong International Securities Company Limited) IMC

(IMC Asia Pacific Limited)
Kong Limited)

(UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited)

(Optiver Trading Hong
(Tibra Trading Hong Kong Limited) UBS
(Y ue Kun Research Limited)

Securities (Asia) Limited)

HK (Bluefin (2012 26 )
HK Limited) 6,170,000
(88,231,000 )
BNP ( (2015 12 31 )
) (BNP  Paribas 178,000,000

(21,511,300,000 )

Limited)

( ) (China
Merchants Securities (HK) Co.,

(2012 30 )
2,000,000,000
(28,600,000,000 )

«C ) (CITIC

Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited)

(2012 25 )
250,000,000
(3,575,000,000 )

(Citigroup Global Markets Asia
Limited)

(2012 29 )
301,951,240
(4,317,902,732 )

(Commerz Securities
Hong Kong Limited)
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(2012 12 )
( ) (Credit Suisse 530,902,000
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited) (7,591,898,600 )
(2012 )
(Deutsche Securities 1,264,089,200
Asia Limited) (18,076,475,560 )
( )
(Eclipse Options (HK)
Limited)
( ) (Guotai (2015 12 31 )
Junan  Securities (Hong Kong) 4,700,000,000
Limited) (67,210,000,000 )
(Haitong (2012 )
International Securities Company 1,500,000,000
Limited) (21,450,000,000 )
IMC (2012 14 )
(IMC Asia Pacific Limited) 5,000,000
(71,500,000 )
(2012 16 )
(Optiver Trading 23,500,000
Hong Kong Limited) (336,050,000 )
(Tibra Trading Hong
Kong Limited)
UBS (2012 10 31 )
(UBS Securities Hong Kong 430,000,000
Limited) (6,149,000,000 )
(Yue Kun Research Limited)

(HK Conversion Agency Services Limited)

~— ~—

URJ

298/323



(
Provident Fund Schemes Authority)

MPF

(HSBC Holdings plc)

(@

(A)

(B)

Department of the Treasury)(OFAC)

OFAC

29

HSBC

EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

(Mandatory

(Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance)

HSBC

@

(b)

( )

HSBC

(b)

(Euro-clear Clearing System Limited)

(Clearstream Banking S.A.)

OFAC
OFAC

HSBC OFAC

299/323

(The Office of Foreign Assets Control of the US

OFAC

104

OFAC



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

() -

ETF ETF
( CSAM )
CSAM ETF
CSAM
CSAM ETF
ETF
CSAM ETF
CSAM CSAM
ETF
( ) ( )
( )
ETF RQFII A
( ) RQFII ( )
RQFII RQFII ETF
RQFII HSBC RQFII
HSBC ( )
( )
RQFII
RQFII

ROQFII (

()

300/323



(iv)

SEHK

www.hkex.com.hk

SEHK

ETF
www.hkex.com.hk

0]

SEHK
SEHK

SEHK

) SEHK

90

ETF

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(i) (
(iii)

) CCASS

WWW.csopasset.com/etf

ETF

HKSCC

301/323

ETF

90

HKSCC



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

( SFO )
( SFC )
SFC (
) ( uT
)
uT
uT
SFC
( REIT )
REIT SFC
(b)
SFC
SFC SFC
( ) SFC
SFC
50
( ) ( )
500,000 ( )
( )
SFO
SFO
SFC SFO

50
SFO (SFO )

302/323



SFC

SFC
104 (1)

@

()

SFC

SFC

100

SFC

()
SFC

(A)

(B)

SFC ( AIR
AIR
(
( (130,000
AIR
SFC AIR
SFC
uT

303/323

)

EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)

AIR

uT

SFC

Ooooooooooooooooooad

SFC SFO
SFC

SFC

SFC
)
( )
uTt
SFC



(

(

(

)

)

)

SFC

SFC

(©)

(A)
(B)

(©)

(A)
(B) SFC

10

(A) ()

()

()

(B)

(©)

(D)

(E)

(F)

SFC

SFC

SFC

304/323

10

50

SFC

EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SFC

uT



(

)

(G

305/323

SFC

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)

( FDI )
SFC  UCITS
uT SFC
SFC UCITSII
UCITS I
UCITS I
RMP ) SFC
RMP
RMP
UCITS uT 8.9 FDI
SFC
UCITSII
() ( )
uT D
@
(b)
(©)
()
SFC
c( ETF

SFC

306/323

8.6

SFC

uT

uT

uT

FDI

8.8

SFC



SFC
SFC
SFC
SFC
uT
uT
uT
uT

EDINETOOOO

OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)

(Product Key Fact Statement)

SFC

SFC

http://en-rules.sfc.hk/net_file store/new_rulebooks/h/k/HK SFC3527 3038 VER10.pdf

SFC

SFC
SFC

@
(b)

(©)

(d)

()
(f)

(
(9)

25
10

30

307/323

Ooooooooooooooooooad

15



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(h)

@)

75

SFC

(a) SFC
(b)

()

()

( )

(© SFC

()

()

()

()

ETF
ETF 8.6 [
ETF ( ETF ) ETF SFC SFC
SFC ()
(ii)
(iii) (iv)
v)
ETH( ETF )
ETF SFC
ETF
ETF
ETF SFC
ETF

ETF
(@ SFC
(b) ( SEHK ) ETF
(c) ETF ( CCASS )

HKSCC

308/323



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ETF

309/323



CSOP FTSE

2016
2016
2016
2016

HKFRS

12
12
12
12

AS50 ETF

CSOP ETF
31
31

31
31

2016 12 31

HKICPA

HKICPA

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP ETF

CSOP FTSE AS0 ETF

HKICPA

HKSA

310/323



CSOP FTSE AS50 ETF

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP ETF

2016 12 31
17,177,372,883
2016 12 31
168,414,838
2016 12 31

2016 12 31

311/323



CSOP FTSE

HKSA

AS50 ETF

HKICPA

HKFRS

2012

SFC

7 25

312/323

EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP ETF

( SFC

HKSA



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSOP FTSE AS50 ETF CSOP ETF

SFC

Li, Lien

2017 4 28

313/323



EDINETOOOO
OO00D0O00o0O00D0bDO000DO0Odnoo(E27318)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA AS0ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG
KONG)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

Thefinancia statements of CSOP FTSE China A50 ETF (the “ Sub-Fund”), a sub-fund of CSOP ETF Series, set out
on pages 9 to 31, which comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e thenotesto thefinancia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Sub-Fund as at 31
December 2016, and of its financia transactions and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basisfor Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Sub-Fund in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “ Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA AS50 ETF (CONTINUED)
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG

KONG)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters

Existence and valuation of investments

The Sub-Fund's investments as at 31 December 2016
were mainly comprised of listed equities of companiesin
the People's Republic of China, valued at
RMB17,177,372,883. These investments held by the Sub-
Fund include listed equities of RMB168,414,838 which
have been suspended from trading as at 31 December
2016.

We focused on the existence and valuation of the
investments because the investments represented the
principal element of the Sub-Fund's net asset value. In
addition, we also focused on the valuation of listed
equities which have been suspended from trading as at 31
December 2016 because the judgement made by the
Manager in determining their fair values involved a high
degree of subjectivity.

Refer to note 8 to the financial statements.

We agreed the existence of the Sub-Fund's holdings of
investments by obtaining a direct confirmation from the
custodian and checking the confirmation to the Sub-Fund
’s records. Based on the procedures we performed, we
found the Sub-Fund's holdings of investments to be in
agreement with the confirmation received.

We agreed the valuation of the Sub-Fund's investments
by comparing the pricing used by the Manager to the
publicly available external pricing sources as at 31
December 2016. We found no material exceptions from
our testing.

In addition, for investments which have been suspended
from trading as a the year end, we assessed the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology adopted by
the Manager. We aso assessed the judgements made in
determining the valuation of these investments by
considering factors which may impact their fair values,
including the duration of the suspension period, the
relevant market information and news of the suspended
listed equities, the price movement of comparable listed
equitiesindex during the suspension period and if
applicable, the market prices of the suspended listed
equities upon resumption of trading after year end.

Based on the procedures we performed, we found the
judgements made by the Manager in determining the
valuation of the investments to be supported by available
evidence.

Other Information

The trustee and the manager (the “Management”) of the Sub-Fund are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises al of the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA A50 ETF (CONTINUED)
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG KONG)

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Management of the Sub-Fund is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management of the Sub-Fund is responsible for assessing the Sub-Fund's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Sub-Fund or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Management of the Sub-Fund is required to ensure that the financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed dated 25 July 2012, as amended
(“Trust Deed”) and Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds issued by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission (the “ SFC Code”).

Auditor’s Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materid if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the financial statements of the
Sub-Fund have been properly prepared, in al materia respects, in accordance with the relevant disclosure
provisions of the Trust Deed and the SFC Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Sub-Fund's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Sub-Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF CSOP FTSE CHINA A50 ETF (CONTINUED)
(A SUB-FUND OF CSOP ETF SERIES, AN UMBRELLA UNIT TRUST ESTABLISHED IN HONG KONG)

Auditor’s Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

e Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We aso provide the Management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Management, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Matters Under the Relevant Disclosure Provisions of the Trust Deed and the SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the SFC Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ms. Li, Lien.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 April 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of CSOP Asset Management Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 10 to 63, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as a 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS") issued by the Hong Kong Ingtitute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the report of the directors, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financia statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financia reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CSOP ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financia Statements (Continued)

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 April 2017
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